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Independent Auditor’s Report

Board of Directors
Northwest Michigan Community Action Agency, Inc. and Affiliates
Traverse City, Michigan

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Northwest Michigan Community Action
Agency, Inc. and Affiliates, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as of September 30,
2018, and the related consolidated statements of activities, and cash flows for the year then ended and the related
notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Management’'s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States; this includes the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’'s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement. The financial
statements of Community Action Credit Counseling, Inc. and Innovative Energy Management, LLC were not
audited in accordance with Government Auditing Standards as those entities did not receive federal funding,.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation
and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.



Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Northwest Michigan Community Action Agency, Inc. and Affiliates as of September 30.
2018, and the changes in their net assets and their cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States.

Other Matters
Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial statements as a
whole. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards and list of programs, Schedule B, which
includes the requirements by Titte 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, and the schedule of program activity
and the schedule of cash - restricted-NeighborWorks America are presented for purposes of additional analysis,
and are not a required part of the consolidated financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of
management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to
prepare the consolidated financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in the audit of the consolidated financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing
and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the
consolidated financial statements or to the consolidated financial statements themselves, and other additional
procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States. In our opinion, the
information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the consolidated financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated June 17. 2019, on our
consideration of Northwest Michigan Community Action Agency, Inc.’s internal control over financial reporting
and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and
other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the
effectiveness of Northwest Michigan Community Action Agency, Inc.’s internal control over financial reporting or
on compliance, That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering Northwest Michigan Community Action Agency, Inc.’s internal control over financial
reporting and compliance.

Wippts LLP
Wipfli LLP

June 17, 2019
Madison. Wisconsin

(]



Northwest Michigan Community Action Agency, Inc.
and Affiliates

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
September 30, 2018

Assets

Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 2,379,603
Restricted cash 414,360
Grants receivable 1,174,266
Accounts receivable 115.260
Prepaid expenses 16.496
Inventory 193.340
Total current assets 4,293,325
Other assets:
Investments 271.032
Mortgages receivable, net 190,520
Total other assets 461,552
Property and equipment, net 445,170
TOTAL ASSETS 3 5.200,047
Liabilities and Net Assets
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable 3 349.276
Accrued payroll and related expenses 215374
Advance from the State 246,403
Grant funds received in advance 1,042,987
Contingent liability 321.283
Total liabilities 2,175,323
Net assels:
Unrestricted 1,953,472
Temporarily restricted 896.252
Permanently restricted 175,000
Total net assets 3.024,724
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 5 5.200,047
See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements. 3



Northwest Michigan Community Action Agency, Inc.

and Affiliates

Consolidated Statement of Activities
Year Ended September 30, 2018

Temporarily  Permanently

Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Total
Revenue:
Grant revenue 3 116,908 $ 18478.150 3§ 50,000 $ 18.645,058
Project income 600 521,547 0 522,147
Sale of homes 44,456 113,934 0 158,390
Investment income 14,277 811 0 15.088
Donations 7.808 146,554 0 154,362
Miscellaneous income 140,499 3.004 0 148,503
In-kind contributions 534,067 0 0 534,067
Net assets released from restriction through
satisfaction of program restrictions 19,358,965 ( 19.358.965) 0 0
Total revenue 20.217.580 ( 89.965) 50,000 20.177.615
Expenses:
Salaries 8,642,661 0 0 8.642.661
Fringe benefits 1,703,166 0 0 1,703,166
Professional/contract services 1,406,971 0 0 1,406,971
Travel/transportation 667.033 0 0 667,033
Space costs 748,635 0 0 748,635
Beneficiary assistance and supplies 4,613,119 0 0 4,613,119
Lease and maintenance of equipment 175,258 0 0 175.258
Other 733,693 0 0 733,693
Commodity food distributed 811,603 0 0 811,603
Payments to subgrantees 290,519 0 0 290.519
In-kind expenses 534,067 0 0 534.067
Total expenses 20,326,725 0 0 20,326.725
Change in net assets ( 109,145) ( 89,965) 50,000 ( 149,110)
Net assets - Beginning of the year 2,062,617 086.217 125,000 3.173.834
Net assets ~ End of the year $ 1953472 % 896,252 §$ 175,000 % 3.024.724
See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements. 4



Northwest Michigan Community Action Agency, Inc.
and Affiliates

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
Year Ended September 30, 2018

Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents:
Cash flows from operating activities:
Change in net assets (3 149,110)

Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to
net cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation 67.170
Gain on disposal of property and equipment ( 12.400)
Provision for loan loss ( 7.174)
Change in discount on mortgages receivable 1,765
Unrealized and realized loss on investments 4,554

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:

Restricted cash { 122.984)
Grants receivable { 67.979)
Accounts receivable ( 106,336)
Prepaid expenses { 4,017
Inventory 204.266
Accounts payable 2,620
Accrued payroll and related expenses 2710
Contingent liability 321.283
Grant funds received in advance 26,476
Net cash provided by operating activities 160,844
Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchase of investments ( 11,336)
Proceeds from sale of property 12,400
Mortgages receivable issued ( 15,294)
Repayment of mortgages receivable 35,644
Purchase of property and equipment ( 75,745)
Net cash used in investing activities ( 54.331)
Change in cash and cash equivalents 106.513
Cash and cash equivalents - Beginning of the year 2.273.090
Cash and cash equivalents - End of the year 5 2.379.603
Supplemental schedule of noncash operating and financing activities:
Change in commodity food inventory and grant funds received in advance b 45,024

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements. 5



Northwest Michigan Community Action Agency, Inc.
and Affiliates

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Nature of Operations

Northwest Michigan Community Action Agency, inc. (NMCAA) was organized as a nonprofit corporation in
1974. NMCAA was formed to develop and provide resources for the purpose of assisting low-income individuals
through a variety of programs in Antrim, Benzie, Charlevoix, Emmet, Grand Traverse, Kalkaska, Leelanau,
Missaukee, Roscommon. and Wexford counties in Michigan. NMCAA is primarily supported through federal and
state grants, Approximately 45% of NMCAA'’s revenue is received under their federal Head Start grant.

Community Action Credit Counseling, Inc. (CACC) was organized as a nonprofit corporation in 2008. CACC was
formed to provide outreach activities that educate the public on the wise and proper use of consumer credit and to
provide professional counseling to individuals in credit crisis and those in need of guidance in management of their
finances, budgeting and wise use of personal credit. In appropriate cases, CACC will also arrange a program of
orderly debt liquidation. CACC had minimal activity for the year ended September 30, 2018.

Innovative Energy Management, LLC (IEM) was organized as a wholly owned limited liability company in 2012.
IEM was formed to provide weatherization and rehabilitation services to middle- to upper-income households.
IEM had minimal activity for the year ended September 30, 2018.

Principles of Consolidation

NMCAA, CACC and IEM (the “Organizations™) have common management and board members and; therefore,
consolidated financial statements have been prepared for the entities. The consolidated financial statements
include the accounts of the Organizations. All intercompany transactions and balances have been eliminated for
consolidated financial statement purposes.

Basis of Presentation

The consolidated financial statements are prepared using the accrual basis of accounting in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States.

Classification of Net Assets

Net assets and revenue, expenses, gains, and losses are classified based on the existence or absence of donor-
imposed restrictions, Accordingly, net assets of the Organizations and changes therein are classified and reported
as follows:

Unrestricted Net Assets - Net assets that are not subject to donor-imposed stipulations.

Temporarily Restricted Net Assets - Net assets subject to donor-imposed stipulations that may or may not be met.
either by actions of the Organizations and/or the passage of time. When a restriction expires, temporarily restricted
net assets are transferred to unrestricted net asselts and reported in the consolidated statement of activities as net
assets released from restrictions.



Northwest Michigan Community Action Agency, Inc.
and Affiliates

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Classification of Net Assets (Continued)

Permanently Restricted Net Assets - Net assets subject to donor-imposed stipulations that they be maintained
permanently by the Organizations. Generally, the donors of these assets permit the Organizations to use all or part
of the income earned on any related investments for general or specific purposes.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts
and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.

Revenue Recognition

Contributions are recognized when the donor makes a promise to give to the Organizations that is, in substance,
unconditional. Contributions received are recorded as unrestricted, temporarily restricted, or permanently
restricted support, depending on the existence and nature of any donor restrictions. When a restriction expires,
temporarily restricted net assets are reclassified as unrestricted net assets and reported in the consolidated
statement of activities as net assets released from restrictions.

Project income represents amounts contributed by program beneficiaries. The contributions are to help defray the
cost of the specific program in which the beneficiary received assistance. The contributions are recorded as
temporarily restricted revenue due to the implied stipulation that the contributions be used in the program the
beneficiary received assistance. When a restriction expires, temporarily restricted net assets are reclassified as
unrestricted net assets and reported in the consolidated statement of activities as released from restriction.

Conditional promises to give are recognized only when the conditions on which they depend are substantially met
and the promises become unconditional.

Grants are either recorded as contributions or exchange transactions based on criteria contained in the grant award.

A. Grant Awards That Are Contributions

Grants that qualify as contributions are recorded as invoiced to the funding sources. Revenue is recognized
in the accounting period when the related allowable expenses or asset acquisition costs are incurred.
Amounts received in excess of expenses or asset acquisitions are reflected as grant funds received in
advance.

B. Grant Awards That Are Exchange Transactions

Exchange transactions reimburse based on a predetermined rate for services performed. The revenue is
recognized in the period the service is performed.



Northwest Michigan Community Action Agency, Inc.
and Affiliates

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of demand deposits, a money market account, and short-term Treasury bills with
original maturities of 90 days or less.

Inventory

Inventory primarily consists of donated food commodities for distribution to low-income households and is stated
at the values provided by the State of Michigan, Department of Education.

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable consist primarily of amounts billed under performance contracts for senior services and an
insurance claim. Amounts are reviewed for collectability by management and an ailowance for doubtful accounts
is recorded as needed based on collection history and customer attributes. NMCAA considers these receivables to
be collectible and; therefore, no allowance for doubtful accounts has been recorded.

Food Distributed

Commodity food distributed represents the vatue of food received through the State of Michigan and distributed to
low-income households. Valuations are provided by the State of Michigan. Commodity inventory is charged to
expense when the commodities are distributed.

Mortgages Receivable

NMCAA operates loan programs funded through USDA Rural Development and Veterans Administration grants.
The programs provide loans to home owners to perform home rehabilitations. The loans are non-interest-bearing,
Loans receivable are discounted to their net present value at a 3.15% discount rate and are stated at the amount of
unpaid principal. Any funds repaid must be used in accordance with the original grant agreement.

NMCAA operates a loan program funded through NeighborWork’s Strategic Investment Fund. The loans are for
down payment assistance of a principal residence. The loans are non-interest-bearing. The foans are forgiven if
the purchaser remains in the home for ten years. Should home ownership be transferred before the ten year period
expires, the deferred loan is payable to NMCAA. Loans receivabie are discounted to their net present value at a
3.05% discount rate and are stated at the amount of unpaid principal.

Management has the intent and ability to hold all loans for the foreseeable future or until maturity or pay-off.
Management has reported the loans at their outstanding unpaid principal balances adjusted for charge-offs and the
allowance for expected loan losses, if applicable.

The allowance for loan losses is a valuation allowance for probable incurred credit losses based on an evaluation of
the outstanding loans. Loan losses are charged against the allowance when management believes the collectability
of the principal is unlikely. Subsequent recoveries, if any, are credited to the allowance.



Northwest Michigan Community Action Agency, Inc.
and Affiliates

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Mortgages Receivable {continued)

Management regularly evaluates the allowance for loan losses taking into consideration such factors as historical
loss experience, changes in the nature and volume of the loan portfolio, overall portfolio quality, probability of
loan forgiveness, and current econoemic conditions that may affect the borrower’s ability to pay.

A loan is considered impaired when, based on current information and events, it is probable that NMCAA will be
unable to collect the scheduled payments of principal when due according to the contractual terms of the loan
agreement. NMCAA has not identified any loans that are impaired at September 30, 2018.

Property and Equipment

Property, equipment, and leasehold improvements are capitalized at cost. Depreciation is provided for using the
straight-line method over the estimated useful life of the asset. NMCAA considers items with a cost greater than
$5,000 and a useful life greater than one year to be property and equipment. Leasehold improvements are
amortized by the straight-line method over the initial term of the lease or useful life, whichever is shorter.
Amortization expense is included with depreciation expense.

Property and equipment purchased with grant funds are owned by NMCAA while used in the program for which
they were purchased or in other future authorized programs. However, the various funding sources have a
reversionary interest in the property and equipment purchased with grant funds. l[ts disposition, as well as the
ownership of any proceeds therefrom, is subject to funding source regulations, The property and equipment
purchased with grant funds is normally restricted for use in specific programs operated by NMCAA. NMCAA has
adopted a policy of implying a time restriction on assets purchased with grant contributions.

Grant-funded property and equipment are recorded as restricted support. As the property and equipment are
depreciated, the temporarily restricted net assets are released from restriction and reported in the consolidated
statement of activities as net assets released from restriction.

Investments

Investments are recorded at fair value as determined in an active market. Realized and unrealized gains and losses
are recognized as investment income in the consolidated statement of activities.

In-Kind Contributions

In-kind contributions for space, supplies, and professional services are recorded in the statement of activities as
revenue and expenses in the period they are received. During the year ended September 30, 2018, NMCAA
received $534,067 of such contributions, primarily for its Head Start and Senior Nutrition programs. In addition,
NMCAA received contributions of nonprofessional volunteer services of $1,981,397, primarily for its Head Start
and Senior Nutrition programs. The nonprofessional volunteer services are not reported in the consolidated
statement of activities as they do not meet the criteria to be recorded under accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States.



Northwest Michigan Community Action Agency, Inc.
and Affiliates

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies {Continued)
Income Taxes

NMCAA and CACC are exempt from income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code.
NMCAA and CACC are also exempt from Michigan franchise or income tax. IEM is a disregarded entity for tax
purposes and all activity of [EM will be included in the tax return of NMCAA.

The Organizations are required to assess whether it is more likely than not that a tax position will be sustained
upon examination on the technical merits of the position assuming the taxing authority has full knowledge of all
information. If the tax position does not meet the more likely than not recognition threshold. the benefit of that
position is not recognized in the consolidated financial statements. The Organizations have determined there are
amounts to record as assets or liabilities related to uncertain tax positions.

Functional Allocation of Costs

The cost of program and supporting service activities have been summarized on a functional basis in Note 14. The
statement of activities presents the natural classification detail of expenses. Certain costs are attributed to more
than one program or supporting function and therefore, require allocation among programs and supporting costs
benefited. Costs are allocated to benefiting programs and supporting services using various allocation methods
depending on the type of cost being allocated.

Subsequent Events

Subsequent events have been evaluated through June 17, 2019. which is the date the consolidated financial
statements were available to be issued.

Note 2: Concentration of Credit Risk

Financial instruments that potentially subject NMCAA to concentration of credit risk consist primarily of cash.
cash equivalents and investments. NMCAA maintains its cash and restricted cash balances at several financial
institutions that are insured by the FDIC up to $250,000. The cash associated with the NeighborWorks America
grant has been deposited in a separate bank account that is covered by FDIC. The Treasury bills included in cash
and cash equivalents are not insured, however, they are short-term in nature. Cash and investments may exceed
FDIC and SIPC at times. Management believes NMCAA is not exposed to any significant credit risk as they use
financial institutions with strong credit ratings and follow an investment policy relative to diversification and
maturities to maintain safety and liquidity.



Northwest Michigan Community Action Agency, Inc.
and Affiliates

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 3: Restricted Cash

The restricted cash balance at September 30, 2018, consists of the following:

[ndividual development accounts $ 243,031
NeighborWorks America capital fund 171.329
Total . - . $ 414,360

Individualj Development Accounts

NMCAA received a grant from the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services for Individual Development
Accounts (IDA). The grant is intended to leverage grant funds. local match, and participant savings for eligible
benefits. The grant awards are on a five-year basis. The grant awards require a dollar for doliar cash match. The
grant states that it is mandatory that NMCAA establish a separate, restricted bank account for the grant and
matching funds to be used for IDA participants. The IDA accounts can be established for three purposes:

Home ownership (first time homebuyer - funds for down payment, mortgage reduction, closing costs, etc.)
Post-secondary education (college, technical, or trade school - for tuition, books, room, and board. etc.)
* Business start-up or expansion (equipment, expansion, office space, etc.)

Eligible participants enroll in the program and open an individual development bank account. As the participant
deposits money into his/her individual bank account. matching funds are earmarked for that participant. NMCAA
incurs expenses against the grant and the match funds and releases the funds when the participant pays for an
eligible cost, Participants can save up to $1,000 which is matched on a 3-to-1 or 2-to-1 basis by NMCAA,
depending on the purpose of the benefit. Match is as follows:

* Home ownership — 3-to-1 (maximum participant $1,000 - NMCAA 3$3.000)
Post-secondary education — 2-to-1 (maximum participant $1,000 - NMCAA $2,000)
* Business start-up or expansion — 2-to-1 (maximum participant $1,000 - NMCAA $2.,000)
NeighborWorks America Capital Fund

NMCAA received an award from NeighborWorks America to maintain a permanently restricted revolving loan and
capital projects fund. The award is required to be held in a restricted bank account segregated from other funding.

Note 4: Inventory
At September 30, 2018. the inventory consists of the following:

Commodity supplemental food £ 177,780
Other 15.560

Total - 3 193,340

11



Northwest Michigan Community Action Agency, Inc.
and Affiliates

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 5: Grants Receivable

Grants receivable at September 30, 2018, consist of amounts due from funding sources as follows:

U.S. Department of Health and Human Services 5 362,608
U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development 55,334
Michigan State Housing Development Authority 133,804
Michigan Department of Human Services 162,355
Michigan Department of Education 54,156
Community Development Block Grant Counties 86,713
Traverse Bay Area Intermediate School District 105,735
Wexford-Missaukee Intermediate School District 89.863
Other programs 123.698
Total : i ; : $ 1,174,266

Note 6: Investments

Investments at September 30, 2018, consist of the following:

Money market fund $ 1.594
Equities 58.442
Mutual funds 210.996
Total _ - . b 271,032

Included in investment income for the year ended September 30, 2018, was interest and dividends of $11.335 and a
net realized and unrealized loss of $4,554 on the above investments. Interest income on the operating cash account
is also included in investment income.

Investments, in general, are exposed to various risks. such as interest rate, credit. and overall market volatility.
Due to the level of risk associated with certain investments, it is reasonably possible that changes in the values of
certain investments will occur in the near term and that such changes could materially affect the amounts reported
in the financial statements.

Note 7: Fair Value Measurements

NMCAA measures certain assets and liabilities at fair value in accordance with accounting standards. The
accounting standard describes three levels of inputs that may be used to measure fair value (the fair value
hierarchy). The level of an asset or liability within the fair value hierarchy is based on the lowest level of input
significant to the fair value measurement of that asset or liability.

Following is a brief description of each level of the fair value hierarchy:



Northwest Michigan Community Action Agency, Inc.
and Affiliates

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 7: Fair Value Measurements (Continued)

Level 1 - Fair vaiue measurement is based on quoted prices for identical assets or liabilities in active markets.
Level 2 - Fair value measurement is based on 1) quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets;
2) quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in markets that are not active; or 3) valuation models and
methodologies for which all significant assumptions are or can be corroborated by observable market data.

Level 3 - Fair value measurement is based on valuation models and methodologies that incorporate at least one
significant assumption that cannot be corroborated by observable market data. Level 3 measurements reflect the
Organization’s estimates about assumptions market participants would use in measuring fair value of the asset or
liability.

Some assets and liabilities, such as investments, are measured at fair value on a recurring basis under accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States. Other assets and liabilities, such as impaired investments, are

measured at fair value on a nonrecurring basis.

As of September 30, 2018, NMCAA does not have any liabilities that are measured at fair value. NMCAA also
does not have any assets or liabilities measured on a nonrecurring basis.

Following is a description of the valuation methodology used for each asset measured at fair value on a recurring or
nonrecurring basis. as well as the classification of the asset within the fair value hierarchy.

Equities and mutual funds are measured using Level 1 as quoted prices are available as they are traded in an active
market.

Money market funds are measured using Level 2 as quoted prices may not be available in an active market.

Information regarding assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis is as follows:

Fair Value Measurements Using

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Fair Value

Money market fund g 0 $ 1,594 % 0 S 1,594

Equities 58,442 0 0 58,442
Mutual funds:

Equity mutual funds 144,816 0 0 144,816

Fixed income mutual funds 66,180 0 0 66,180

Totals $ 269,438 $§ 1,594 by 0 3§ 271032




Northwest Michigan Community Action Agency, Inc.
and Affiliates

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 8: Mortgages Receivable

Mortgages receivable consist of the following:

Housing preservation loans (1) $ 481,500
Affordable Housing for Rural Veterans loans (1) 45,348
NeighborWorks Strategic Investment Fund (2) 25.000
Total loans 551.848
Allowance for uncollectible mortgages receivable ( 283.424)
Expected mortgages receivable to be collected 268,424
Discount at 3.05% (1) { 77,288)
Discount at 3.15% (2) { 616)
Total b} 190,520

The unamortized discount is the difference between the face amount of the loan receivable and its present value
discounted at a compound interest rate. This discount is then amortized over the life of the loan. The loans are
non-interest-bearing and are due upon the transfer of ownership.

NMCAA has a second mortgage on the properties. As NMCAA does not anticipate any homes to transfer
ownership in the next year, the receivable balance has been classified as a long-term asset.

An analysis of the allowance for uncollectible revolving loans receivable is as follows:

Balance at beginning of year $ 290,598
Provision for loan loss (7.174)
Balance at end of vear , : & 283424

NMCAA considers loans impaired when, based on current information. it is probable that they will not collect all
amounts due in accordance with contractual terms of the loan agreement. This generally includes loans where
management has received indications suggesting future nonperformance is likely. Loans that are deemed impaired
are evaluated for impairment individually. Loans that are not impaired are evaluated for impairment collectively
based on past loss experience, current economic risks and other relevant factors.

Detailed analysis of the allowance for loan losses as of September 30, 20138, is as follows:

Loan Allowance
Balance Balance
Loans — individually evaluated for impairment b 0 $ 0
Loans — collectively evaluated for impairment 551,848 283,424
Totals $ 551,848 5 283.424




Northwest Michigan Community Action Agency, Inc.
and Affiliates

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 9: Property and Equipment

A summary of property and equipment at September 30, 2018, is as follows:

Corporate Grant Award

Purchased Purchased Totals

Land b 112,068 $ 26,125 h) 138,193
Buildings 881.868 92.063 973,931
Buildings & improvements 478.541 40,480 519,021
Vehicles/equipment 101.854 1,019,279 1,121,133
Subtotals 1,574,331 1,177,947 2,752,278
Accumulated depreciation ( 1.408.991) (898.117Y ( 2307.108)
Property and equipment, net $ 165,340 _$ 279,830 $ 445170

Note 10: Temporarily Restricted Net Assets

Temporarily restricted net assets are available for the following purposes:

Early child education $ 6,449
Senior funds 26,287
Community services 266,128
Assets for independence demonstration 127,038
Grant funded mortgages 190,520
Grant-funded equipment 279.830
Total R § 896,232

The above net assets have a specific purpose or time restrictions. When the restrictions are met, net assets are
released from restriction and reported as unrestricted net assets.

Note 11: Permanently Restricted Net Assets

Capital funds provided by NeighborWorks America held in perpetuity, segregated and maintained as such to
account for the eligible uses listed in the Investment and Grant Agreement between NeighborWorks America and
NMCAA. The balance of the fund at September 30, 2018 is $175,000.

Note 12: Employee Retirement Plan

Employees may choose to withhold a portion of their income for contribution to NMCAA’s 403(b) retirement plan.

Contributions to the plan are 100% vested at the time of contribution. NMCAA did not directly contribute any
amount into the retirement plan for the year ended September 30, 2018.



Northwest Michigan Community Action Agency, Inc.
and Affiliates

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 13: Operating Lease Agreements

NMCAA leases various facilities and equipment for operation of its programs with varying terms through
September 30, 2026. Lease expense for the year ended September 30, 2018, was $503,549. Several of NMCAA’s
operating leases have terms extending beyond one year. The leases have a clause allowing early termination based
on loss of grant funding. There is no expectation of loss of funding. The commitments are as follows:

2019 $ 432,480
2020 208,204
2021 118,600
2022 93,571
2023 60,568
Thereafter 127,194
Total § 1,040,617

Note 14: Functional Classification of Expenses

The following program and supporting services are reflected in the consolidated statement of activities for the year
ended September 30, 2018:

Program activities

Child education § 10.245,255
Housing program 2,954,796
Community services 3,176,020
Food programs 1.520,177
Older Americans 933.744
Weatherization/energy assistance 587.746
Total program activities 19.417,738
Management and general 835.666
Fund-raising 73,321
Totalexpenses - : § 20,326,725

Note 15; Grant Awards

At September 30, 2018, NMCAA had received commitments for future funding under various grant awards of
approximately $6,335,000. These commitments are not recognized in the accompanying consolidated financial
statements as receivables and revenue as they are conditional awards.



Northwest Michigan Community Action Agency, Inc.
and Affiliates

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 16: Contingent Liability

NMCAA has recorded a liability for potential costs owed to funding sources. NMCAA discovered costs charged
to the State of Michigan weatherization and low income home energy assistance grants during fiscal years 2016,
2017, and 2018 for materials from one vendor that were never received. The total amount recorded for the
contingent liability is $321,283. Upon completion of investigations, NMCAA will be working with the
appropriate funding sources to resolve the liability. The final amount owed could change based on the outcome
of negotiations and potential recovery of funds through criminal forfeiture.
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Northwest Michigan Community Action Agency, Inc. and Affiliates

Scheduie A-1

Schedule of Program Activity
Year Ended September 30, 2018

REVENUE

Prior year's grant Funds reccived in advance

Feueral grant reimbursement revenue

Statz and local grant reimbursement revenue

Performance contract revenue
Commoditiea food received
Granu funds received in advance
Cirant revenue

Project income

Sate of Hames

[nvesument income

Donations

Miscellaneous ieome
Transfers

In-kind contnbwions

Total Revenue

EXPENSES

Salancs

Fringe benelits
Professional/contract services
Traveltransportation

Space cons

Deneficiary assisance and supplies
Lease artdd masntenanee of equoament
Other

Indircet expenses

Commodity food distnibuied
Payments to subgremices

Ia-kind expenses

Toinl Expenses

Chanee in Net Assets

Net asscts - Beginning of the year

NET ASSETS - End of the year

See Independent Auditor's Repon

FEDERAL PRCGRAMS
Dopartment of Agricultyrs —
10588 10,5985 10 588 10583
Temparary
- ity Emerg T v 0.8,
Chilkd and Suppl | Food Amsist. Emergency 10568,
Adult Day Food Program Faod 10.508 Program Food Asulst. 10889
Total Care Food 280001022C Distribution Subtotal 28-000-0001 Distribution Subtotal
0 ] ] i — [l
$ 971487 % 0 0 8 132,736 13125 8 oS 1] 132,756
14,432,990 574,386 183,03 o 183,031 01,813 (1] 286,846
3,310,033 0 1] ] 1] [+] [1] 0
116908 0 [} 0 (1] ] o 0
856,627 ¢ ¢ 06,000 706,000 i} 250,627 836,627
i1.042.987) 4] [1] il 77,7& {1TT,780% ] () i172,190)
15,645,038 375, 3E 143,031 360,976 TH 07 ]I 230627 boad Y
32,147 [} ¢ Q o 0 1] ]
158,390 ¢ 1} 4] o 0 [t} [}
15,088 [1} [} 4 o 4] [H] ¢
184,302 o 1} ] o a ] ¢
148,503 [} 700 i} 700 4501 [+] $.201
0 1] o 0 [H] Q 0 1]
$34.067 [1] [1] } [ ] ] [
20177618 A75386 183,73t 560.976 74,707 108316 150.627 1.103.650
826610 o 30737 Q 9,737 331878 5] 113.61%
1,703,166 [1] 3292 O 1329 8,720 0 12,012
1,406,971 [1] 4873 0 4873 128 1} 3,001
667033 [} 8546 0 p 521 19,927 0 28473
TR 635 1} 19122 Q 19112 3,583 '] 12,705
46E3,119 375,386 6,366 0 6,366 Lla [i] 8,582
178,258 [ 92516 L] 9,586 EIN 114 0 40,088
733,693 L] 6523 0 6513 1,632 4] 8,135
¢ o 15,686 1] 15,086 7130 o 11816
111,603 o L] 560,976 560976 9 240,617 811,603
290,519 [} 1] 1] ] 9 Q o
34067 1] 1] L 0 [1] 1] [1]
20325728 JT3R6 183.731 260,976 744,707 108316 250627 1,103,650
149,11 a [} [} n [H [} o
3.173.834 1] 1] 0 0 b} 0 1]
b 1 w 3 [} 0 $ 0 a0 % L . 1 1] [1]
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Northwest Michigan Community Action Agency, Inc. and Affiliates

Schedule A-2
Schedule of Program Activity
Year Ended September 30, 2018

REVENUE

Prior yoat's grant funds received in advance
Federal grant feimbursement revenue

State and local grant rimbursement revenue
Performance contract reverue
Commodities food received

Grant funds reecived in sdvance

Grant revenue

Project income

Sale of Homes

[avestment income

Donattons

Siscellansous income

Transfers

Indand conthindions

Tota$ Revenuve

EXPENSES

Saloncs

Fange benchits
Profemonal’contract services
TravelAranspostation

Space cosy

Beneliciary assistance and supplics
Lease and mammenance of equipment
Other

Indircct cxpenacy

Tammadity food disinbuted
Payments to subgrantees

In-kend expenses

Total Expenses

Change in Net Assets
Het assets - Beginrung of the year

NET ASSETS - End of the year

See Independent Auditor's Repert

FEDERAL PROGRAMS
Department of Houslng snd Urban Development
14.189 14.229
Waentord Co. Charlevolx Co. Emmet Co. Grand Traverse
cDBG cpeq COBG Co. CDBG
LEHA LCHA "] Housl
[~ b 14.988 ME5C 2075 MSC 2014 MEC 2015- MSC-2013- 14228
HE 180321040 HC1T022 1018 Subtatad SEIT-HO TIZ-HO 07T27-HO O781:-HO Subtotal
[[]] in n et un

0 % 0 7 5 0 % [ ] 9 3 [1 B [}

16,759 1359 pL AL 61154 H.629 206,831 {2411 91,203

0 0 0 4] 0 0 o ]

¢ 0 0 [} a 0 1] o

o ¢ ¢ [} 1) 0 i1 ]

LN [1] [ (] {1.1661 0 Q 11.166}

16,734 10,385 MENTEH 02,154 FERTY] 206, K31 12411) 290,037

3 [ 3 31763 18439 30,07 107,40 189,718

Q 4] L] Q 0 ¢ 0 0

[} 0 ] Q 0 o 0 L}

Q@ [i] [} 0 ¢ o 0 !

Q 1] a L) ¢ o /] 0

L] L] 4 {18,092y ] {8,630) {27.094) 133.816)

k1] {0 [ 0 i} ] 1] {}

16,764 11349 8113 77425 S1902 218277 61938 +425.93%
12,730 1966 20.146 13,986 26 1.387 11,569 16.968
2460 2360 4,820 2,18 2 177 L7 4,260
L] 1] 0 Gl 10,150 35,359 sl 45,621

[1} o ¢ ur 0 0 40 a7

o 1} 1} w7 0 0 N2 549

+] o o 40,41 41,707 191,208 23709 37065

[} [} o 18 4 ¢ (L] 32

/] 1] ° 164 17 2 24 37

1504 1,033 1587 nz [ o« 0 70

g ] 0 0 4] [ 0 ]

L] L] [+ 0 o o 0 0

1] 9 1] LU 1] o 1] 1]

16,564 11359 20115 77815 41,503 218271 67,938 425589

L1} a L] 0 a L1} [1] [1]

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1]

S [ 2 1 k1] 0 % [ [ [ I a 3 []
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Northwest Michigan Community Action Agency, Inc. and Affiliates

Schedule A-3
Schedule of Program Activity
Year Ended Sepiember 30, 2018

REVENUE

Priod year's grant funds received in sdvance
Fodcral grani resmbursement revenue

Statc and local grani reimbursement revenue
Teriormance contract revetwe
Commaodities food received

Coant fandg received in sdvance

Grant revenue

Project income

Sale of Homes

Investment income:

Danations

Aliscellancous income

Teansfers

In-Lindd contributions

Totsl Revenue

EXPENSES

Salanes

Fringe benelilg
Profesyonal/coniract services
TravelAransportation

Space costs

Beneliciary nssistance and supplies
Lease and maimenance of equipment
Other

Indireet expenses

Commodity food distnbucd
Payments 1o subgrantees

Inkind expenses

Total Expenses

Change in Net Assets

Net asseis - Beginning of the year

NET ASSETS - End of (he year

Sec Independent Auditor's Repont,

FEDERAL PROGAAMS
Department of Housing and Urhan
14201 14,238
MSHOA
MSHDA ESQ Famity Rural P i
EsQ HML-2018- Rapid R Emmaet HMIS
HML-2017- MNorthwest- 14 Re-Housing Progrem (FRP) Housing Qrant HML-2016-M)-
atoT-ESF 0107-ESF Subtote) SHP-17-15008 SHF-18-18008 SHP-17-24001 5882 HMIS
] [iE] ] Tish L] k]

o s o % 0 s 9 3 [ I [ 4 69310 % 6415
435,381 19.275 184656 136,039 188,433 234816 6,130 6,180
¢ 4] [+] 0 [} ] 0 0
] 0 i} L] o 0 1] i3
(] ] aq 0 [} Q Q (1]

] i} ] L] 0 1] 142040 {4.230
+35.381 19275 454,656 136,039 158,433 225816 1,906 8,365
o 9 1] [!] Q 0 [} o
4] 0 L) ¢ 1] 0 o o
1] (] L] 1] 1] L] U] ]
4] 0 ] o Q L] ] [+]
Q 0 0 (1] 0 0 1] Q
4] 0 0 1] L] 1295 ] 0
[1] 1] 1] (] k(] 0 il i
435,381 19.275 434,686 136,033 183433 ni B.906 3.365
166,193 1054 176.737 26,100 50932 45,498 1] L]
3897 2,363 8.339 116 BR26 10,649 o L
12.236 L] 12,236 413 3319 pd2 ] 41982 4982
378 nr 1843 1,200 2348 .77 06 230
6,931 226 157 1,304 2708 1,668 i 0
2419 5775 %14 98,663 112918 150,073 2418 LH2
1,208 a 1.308 468 008 R [ [
4,748 250 4.5 1,323 HO o002 [ 0
1] a u 53 6,714 1316 L11s 61
] a [4] 0 0o 1] - [{]
13,845 ] 31,843 L) o [i] [ 0
[1] ik i} 4 ] a ] 1]
435331 19275 454,656 136,039 138433 232411 8906 B85
a 0 1] L) 1] [ o o
] i 0 0 0 L L] ]
a % L LU § [ 2} B3 [ I 4 [ I ] [1]

X



Northwest Michigan Community Action Agency, Inc. and Affiliates

Schedule A4

Schedule of Program Activity
Year Ended September 30, 2018

AEVENUE

Pnor years grant funds received in advance

Federal grant reembursement revenue

Stsic and Jocal grant retmbursement revenue

Performance conteact revetiue
Commoditics food reccived
Gran funds recerved in advance
Grant reveniue

Projes! income

Sale of Homey

imvestment income

Donations

Miscetlancous income
Tramsfers

Ia-kind contntrzions

Tolal Revenue

EXPENSES

Salaries

Fringe benefit
Profesnional/contract services
Traveltranspottalion

Space cosls

Beneficiary assistance and supplics
Lease and masatenance of equipment
Crher

ndirect expenses

Commondnty food distnbuted
Payments to subgrantees.

In-kind expenses

Tutsd Espenses

Change in Net Asscts

Net assets « Beginning of the year

NET ASSETS « End of the year

See Independent Auditor's Repon,

FEDEHAL MIOGRAMS
Depariment of Housing and Uitban Developmant
14.233 4.239
[~ HUD Youth
Manistes HMIS Home Planning Planning
HML-2018-MI 14.235 Grant 1430 Grant M- Grant MI-
5682 HMIS Subtotal M-2013-0907 Subtotsl 056L3F 121700 O358YSF121600
] - TET CL
H 4,320 17,663 6,530 177 % 0 o 3 L]
6,180 301,828 19,9492 02 11,000 1.266 17,682
0 0 0 0 [ 1} L]
] 0 0 0 ¢ 4] 0
0 L] 0 0 1] 4] 0
15,073} 113507 [1] [ [1] ] 1]
$A427 371,546 3 20,502 3909 [IRCTH 3266 17,042
1] 0 [i] ] ] o 0 ¢
[{] 1] 0 o 1) [} 1] ¢
0 0 [ ] ] 0 L] ]
0 [ ] ] 0] 0 L 1,096
1] 1] ] [+ o a 0 L]
] 1.295 o {38 [£11)] L] 0 a
[ 1] [ 1] 1] 1] 0 0
5417 579,151 15941 8088 11.000 3,266 18,778
o 133,530 6,248 6248 a ] 0
o nn 1,327 1,327 1 ] 0
4,004 15304 41 12,688 10,000 299 18530
] 6,251 0 5 L] u 1] ]
a 6,677 L] 133 133 0 L] L]
829 367,243 00 15,047 15,947 0 [] M8
0 135 0 4 8 [} ] 0
0 5765 0 67 67 0 o L]
194 12337 0 1265 2263 1,000 97 0
L] 0 0 0 0 [ 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 ¢ a 0
0 0 1] 1] 1] [1] 1]
5427 379281 2541 JA.688 11.000 3266 18,778
0 o o ] o 0 0
0 [} 1] 1] a ] 0
b3 [1] 1} [1] o § [(] [ [1]




Northwest Michigan Community Action Agency, Inc. and Affiliates

Schedule A-5

Schedule of Program Activity
Year Ended September 30, 2018

_FEDERAL PROGRAMS
HUD Mﬂmnl of Trassury
14267 X7i] 71.000
NeighbarWorks NalghborWorks NW Laarning NelghborWacks
Family Seli- Qresn Program Naighb 5 ok Sgl. Fam. Hame
Sulticlsncy Dev, Grant Wask, Ivestment NTI Traved Heulth Prinrshpa Cusign Fligt
14267 Prog. - HCVP FY12-2 2013 Crant G-NWW. Fund Grant Q-8UP G-BUPEXT-2018 0180877
Subtotal 18-91-F5% F527-0058-0P0S1 2018-4909% R-5{F-2018-4353% 201847837 50827 OOT77-TARS
El 7 G 19 9] [
REVENUE
Prior yoar's grant funds received in advance $ T § [ 4 PN T 0 s 0 s 0 s [ I 30,633
Federal grant reimbursement revenue EIR- 8321 0 300 50,000 600 13,000 ]
State and bocal grant resmbursement revenue 0 ] 3] 1] ] 0 0 4]
Performance contracl fevesiug [ 4] 0 o o ] 0 i}
Commadities food received. ] a ] ] ] L] 0 L]
Grant funds reegived in advance [ 291) i10.8271 1358) 1400000 4] {14.203) {30,766}
Grant revenue A B8 HE] 1z 0 00 97 V.867
Proyect income 0 1 L] [] L] s00 ] 200
Sale of Homes ] 0 0 L] L] L] ] 0
[avesument income 9 0 0 0 L] 0 0 1]
Donatons 1096 ¢ 0 0 0 L] L} []
Miscetlaneous income ] o 0 (] 0 0 L] ]
Transfera 0 L] 3] ] 1] 0 L] 5
Tnkind coatfibuions 0 0 [1} 1] [1} 1] 0 ]
Totsl Revenue 33.0H 1,018 Ny 152 [(] 10,100 797 10367
EXPENSES
Salancs 0 5823 252 Q Q o [ L]
Fringe benelits 1] 1415 38 9 i} 4] o 0
Professional/comeact services AN 1] L] 0 L] L] a ERED)
Traveltransporiation 0 [} a 47 Q 5131 698 1018
Space costs 0 L 0 0 {0 0 0 1}
Beneficiary assistance and supplics 248 L] 0 82 ] 107 Q 250
Lestae and mainensnce of equipment 0 o 0 (] 0 0 L] ]
Other 0 0 1) 1] [ 0 21 3470
[ntirect expenses 1,297 730 9 13 1] 73 n 4
Commodity food distnbuted 1] 0 ] o ] (] 0 i}
Paymems Lo subgraniecs 1] o o ] 0 0 0 4
In-und expenses 1] 1] [i] 0 [+] i 0 L]
Talal Fapenses 3304 S.OL e 142 ] 10,100 797 10367
Change in Net Assets 1] aQ 0 1] n u [} L)
Net assets - Begmntng of the year } 4] ] 0 ] '] 1] 0
NET ASSETS - End of the year 5 [ I § [ I ¥ 0 3 0 3 0§ [ I 1 [T ] [}

See Independent Auditor's Repont 23
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Schedule A-6
Schedule of Program Activity
Year Ended Seplember 30, 2018

EEDERALPROCHANS
Depariment of Trsssuty
21.000
NelghborWorka ") NaighbarWork NaeighborWorka & Vi gl i
P I igl v Finsnclal Capabiinty Strstegi L ty C
Ne Works CIM OW- Director Restricted o
Operating Capital 2017.4827- 2018-3677- 2018.8537-0102- Tranaltton G- Emmat County Pasr-to-Peet Ae
Qrant Grant 0293-3UP o406-85UPIY SIFUNDES SUPEXT-2018 50828 ADR Project SUPNT-2018-51112

= an 1] —T [£]] ] = an ) .
REVENUE
Prior yoar's grant funds reesived in advance - 340 8 0 ¥ 4143 % %6 $ 5000 0§ o 3 o s 1]
Federal grant reimbursement revenue 145,000 50,000 [} L] a 25,000 o 2,000
State and local gramt rembuncment feverue o 0 0 L] 0 ] g b
Performance contract revenue ] 0 0 L] 0 o ] 0
Commoditics lood received L] 0 [} L] o 0 ] 1]
Grant funds recorvedd in advance {339.416} 0 {4.743) 0 1134713 '] L] {2.000)
Grant revenue [IFXIE] 2000 [ 756 21,529 29,000 [1] ¢
Project income 0 1] o [} 0 ] L] 0
Sate of Homes 0 1} o 0 ¢ Q 11353 [1}
[nvestment income kil o 1] 0 (1} 2 0 [1}
Donghiots '} a o [} 1] L] 0 1]
Miscellaneous income 0 o Q 1] o L] 0 [}
Tramafers ] 4] u ] [¢] L] 0 [
ta-hind contniwions 1] i) ] 1] 0 i) 1] 0
Tolal Revenue 109,949 50.000 L) 755 21,519 25000 31394 1]
EXPENSES
Salarics 13,746 0 L] 636 631 21,367 [] 0
Fringe benefits 20,539 0 L] 51 1830 1.656 L] 0
Professional/coniract services 378 LU 0 4] Q a [1} 0
Traveltransportation 119 L] L] a 0 ¢ [ L]
Space costs 1,356 0 0 1} L) ¢ 4] L0
Benefictary sssisiance and supplics 1 963 i 0 Q 10,000 ] V] L]
Lease and maienance of equipment 4 0 0 i} 0 [1} 4] 0
Cther R27 0 0 9 L o 16,066) 4
Indarect exponscs 10,498 0 /] [ (K E) 1977 0 0
Commodsty food distnbuted L] 0 0 0 0 [ 1] )]
Payments 1o subgrantees. L] 0 0 L 0 ] a 0
In-kind expenses 0 1] Q kU 1] [t] 0 1]
Total Expenses $19.949 [ 1] 156 21529 15,000 16.066) ]
Change in Net Assets a 50,000 o L] [ 0 120,000 [
Net asseta « Beginming of the year 0 | 25,000 1] 0 [ 0 (120.000) V]
NET ASSETS - End of the year 5 0 3 I'IS& g [ I 1 [T 1 [ I L 3 0§ 1]

See [ndependent Auditor's Report. 23
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Schedule A-7

Schedule of Program Activity
Year Ended September 30, 2018

REVENUE

Prior year's grant funds reeeived in advance

Federal grant reimburscmenl revenoe

Statz and local grant reimbursement revesnue

Performance contract revenue
Commodities focd received
Grant funds received in advance
Grant revenue

Project income

Sale of Homes

[nvesement income

Donations

Mzsee!laneous income
Transfers

[n-kind contributions

Totad Revenue

EXPENSES

Salancs

Frnge benchits
Profeasiomal’contract services
Travelransporiation

Space costs

Beneficiary assstance and supplics
Lease and marnsenance of equipment
Other

Indirect expenscs

Commeodity food dstnbuted
Pxyments 1o subgrantees

In-kind expenses

Totsl Expenses

Chanee in Net Assets
Nel asscis - Begmming of the year

NET ASSETS - End of the year

Sce Independent Auditor’s Report.

FEDERAL PROGRAMS
Dept. of Trassury Waterans Affalra Dapartment of Energy Dopt of Heaith and Hutnat Sefvicss
21.000 21008 84033 [T 93.048
Volunteer Supportive Sarv. Waath Waath Senlor
Incoma Tax A Al Senior HNutrithon -
21.000 Assistance Familes Prog. Program WAP. Program WAP. 81.042 Nutritian - Home
Subtotal 1TVITAGOID 13-M)-1 18- 290231 16-28023-NEA 10 Subtotal Congragate Dolivered
1a0] Ol (L) (L] (] [

$ 36300 % LU 0o 5 0o s ] 0 0o s Q

292,500 35,000 $29.287 422926 73.906 496,832 178,257 G652

L] 0 ] 4] L] 4 321 161,986

0 0 Qo ¢ L) ] ] 9

0 0 1] 1] L] 1] L] 0

{435,784} [\] { [1] ] 1] {} 0
237,625 33 400 w9287 42291 pEXT 490437 187,613 a7

1,000 o o o 0 a 86,020 184,198

113,934 o o o 0 o o 0

334 0 a 4] I] 0 © o

(] o 0 a 1] Q [} 1]

o ] 0 1] 0 a o ¢

0 0 0 ] L] 9 0 146,362

i) 11446 0 1] 0 i} 5).622 33 546

352,893 118446 629237 4211916 73,906 496,832 115260 816,754

114,692 21699 219,430 102279 14309 116,582 114335 246,833

2004 3338 38,683 29962 3051 35913 13.109 5,776

1559 30 13451 4970 1303 45,38 41403 136011

1029 3477 16,461 15,756 3560 15316 7 83,843

1,356 0 12833 2926 1,006 1932 7430 18,487

56,387 290 178.298 197.611 44,005 Hlalo 64,180 88813

M 357 2094 2573 183 1156 L1 1377

2158 1803 9018 TEH 1,863 92,122 1406 L

5424 an 35,143 19,895 50 23,406 12,44 1677

[} a Q o L) ¢ ¢ 0

¢ [] 81674 o L) [1] [ ] i

1] #1446 ] 0 [(] 1] 41622 13356

182593 118446 619,257 410926 11906 96832 318260 816,754

150,000 L] 0 L] L] 1] L] 0

5.000 [} 0 ] 0 [ O 5

5 173000 § 0 8 0 s [ § 1] a a 3 L]




Northwest Michigan Community Action Agency, Inc. and Affiliates

Schedule A-8

Schedule of Program Activity
Year Ended September 30, 2018

REVENUE

Prior year's grant funds reeeived in advance

Federal grant reimburserpent feverue

State and local grant rermbursement evenue

Performance contracl revenus
Commadities food received
Grant funds recened i advance
Grani revenue

Project income

Sale of Homes

[y estment income

Donations

Miscellaneous income
Transfers

In-hind contbutions

Total Revenue

EXPENSES

Salancs

Frings benefits
Professional/contract services
Traveltransportation

Space costs

Benefictary asumtance and supplics
Leasc and mamienance of equipment
Other

Indsrect expenscs

Commandity food distnbuted
Paymens to subgramecs

In-kissd expenses

Total Expenises

Chaneein Net Assels

Net assets - Begmung of the year

NET ASSETS- End of the year

Sce Independent Auditor's Report

__FEDERAL PROGRAMS
Dapariment of Health snd Human Services
2).043 93.083 23468 nss
Salvation Artiy Weatherlzation LIHEAP Crists
Nutrition 23045 B Mated Provider LIHEAP Avslatance MCA MEAP MCA UHEAP
02,048 Services .03 Program TSA/ WAP-18-70022-2 LCAS-Z8073 MAE LDA MAE
Subtatal Incemiive Subtotal NMCAA YR 17-18 NFAF2 272008 G TIB1MILIEA

() N 143] [] (53] L]

0 0 0 5 H o ] L] 0
M9 135646 198,305 3 138,900 663,700 132300 158,760
2,307 L] mw? o i} 4] 0 [}

o (1] /] o a 1] ] (1]

(1] o 0 (1] 0 0 0 1}

[1] ¢ ¢ 0 Q 1 [i] (]
615,296 135,646 770,902 3,821 138,900 A3, T 132,300 158,760
270211 0 170,213 0 1137 0 ¢ 0

o 0 o ] L] 0 1] 0

1] ] o 2 0 0 o i}

0 0 o Q [ 0 [1} Q

i 9 o 0 0 13 o L]
146,362 0 146362 0 0 1] o L]
10178 a L10.178 L] ] i ] 0

1343014 155.646 1 297660 3321 140,037 665,700 1 3130 158,760
361,108 0 36).168 1,802 0,756 37863 13372 2,19
13,888 [} 73988 m 12,875 1,660 [R117 1688
177414 0 17744 0 4,950 [} [ o
90,540 [ 90,940 1] 1530 40 331 1]
W7 1] 28017 ] 992 1,6% 1.597 35
32,005 155.646 408,641 1,205 40,103 12,769 12426 145,843
3081 ] 3.051 o 13 pii H2 156
0,135 ] 0138 o 1018 631 925 ne
15,081 ] 15,081 18 6,668 4,722 1,785 1133

o (1] Q o /] 0 ] ]

1) o 0 o 1] L 0 0
110,178 1] 110,178 ] i) 1] 0 0
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[} L] o 1] a L] [ [+

] 0 [ '] 1 0 [ 0

1] 0 [ 1 [ 0 4 )] 0
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Northwest Michigan Community Action Agency, Inc. and Affiliates

Schedule A-9

Schedule of Program Activity
Yenr Ended September 30, 2018

REVENUE

Prior year's grant funds recerved in advance

Federal grant reimbursement revenue

State ond local grant reimbursement revenue

Performance conract revenue
Commodiues food received
Crant finds receaved in advance
Grant revenue

Project income

Sate of Homes

Invesiment income

Denanons

Mhsce!laneous wcome
Transfen

[n-kind contnbutions

Totsl Revenue

EXPENSES

Salanes

Fringe benefits
Prafcssionaliconiract services
Travelaransportanon

Space costy

Teneicrary sasctance and supplies
Lease and mamtenances of cquipment
Other

Indirect expenses

Commoudity foed disributed
Payments 1o subgrantees

In-kingd cxpenscs

Tota) Expenses

Change in Net Assets
Net assets - Beginmng of the year

NET ASSETS - End of the year

See Independent Auditors Reporn.

FEDERAL FROGRAMS
Department ol Health and Human Bervicus .
L — CFEC] 33800
Community Hasd Start
[= = Bervicer
Services Services Block Geant Traning &
Block Gramt Block Grant Disetwtionary Full-Yaar, Technical
93568 C58G-14 CSBg-14- CSBG-D-14- 51589 Part-Day Assistance
Subtotal 2B0ZI YR 4 2801 YR 8 2802 YRS Subsitotal O5C1H010303-83 O5CHO 1030303
182} 3] ] 98] L]
0 s o s [ o 3 ¢ 3 [N 0
5,095,660 143,383 398,308 A0.000 591,866 4,327,916 62,016
0 a 0 o ] 0 ]
L] 4] o '] ] a 0
0 0 o ] 1} a ]
[{] 1] ] _(] (] b 4]
1LU9S5 650 143,338 398,508 0,000 EITRI 4.327936 (Y1)
1137 L] 0 L] 0 L] 4]
0 L[] 1] 0 [+] 0 0
1] ) Q 1] ] 0 9
] 0 a 9 [+ 0 0
(1] 0 i} 0 4] 0 0
] 0 L] 0 ] [ 0
[ 0 1] 0 a 1.439.838 0
1,096,797 143,358 398,508 SLO0G 591566 $317.1H4 62,036
"7 82,178 198,136 12,789 EIEN [5] 2,198,131 [
230639 19,246 423810 789 £8.843 44062 )
495 849 6101 ] 6,950 417918 6815
1,901 2,707 18,639 1804 24200 132934 23.684
137 11,449 1737 [ 19,020 290.236 ]
931,181 541 17,280 038 24,679 326,061 12240
1012 2.398 6330 1] 728 216 a
3T 5.289 12,7129 1457 1475 4,814 13,657
14308 13501 63862 1503 11,866 174,504 5640
L] o 3 [+] 13 a ']
L] 4] 1] o 0 ] L]
1] 1] 4] ] 1] 1,489,838 ]
1.096.797 143388 Jon.s08 20.000 501866 ST £1.036
L) 1] o ] [ [} ]
L) 1) [ i) [} 1] i
9 5 [ I ¥ 0 $ n $ 1] [ 3 [1]
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Northwest Michigan Community Action Agency, Inc. and Affiliates

Schedule A-10
Schedule of Program Activity
Year Ended September 30, 2018

FEDERALPAOGRAMS 2
MS"‘"“ of Heshh and Humian Services
91.000
Head Start
Teslning & Tralaing & Tralning &
Eatly Technlesl Full-Yasr, Technicsl Earty Technical
Head Btart Amsistance Part-Day Assistance Head Start Asalstance $3.800
0SCHO10303-03 05CHO10303-00 QECHO 1030 03CHO 1 003-02 O3CHO10303-03 02CHO10303-02 Subtotal
] [ (] 7] 1) (5]
REVENUE
Prior yoar's grant fuhdds recesved in advance s 0 3 o 3 [U 0 3% 0 0 L]
Federal grant resmbursement revenue 1817.219 12,662 1.901,041 3948 637416 8.105 £,820,460
State and local grani rermbursesnent revenue ] o L] o L] 0 [}
Performance contracl revenuc ¢ o L] 0 0 ¢ 0
Commoditics food received ] ] LU 0 0 ] ]
Grant funds received m advance [1] 1] 0 0 0 [1] 1]
Grani revenue 1.817.21% 42662 12001041 R 57416 .05 BAIUA60
Project mcome 4] L] 0 [] 0 ] o
Sale of Homes 0 L] i) ] D] 0 a
Investment income 4] 0 ¢ o [} a [+
Porstions Q L} L] a ¢ a i}
Miscellancous income L] 0 L] a o ] Q
Transiers L] [ a a ¢ 0 4]
In-kind contnbutions 0 0 £32.002 a [+] 0 2.321,840
Total Revenne 1 817,219 42,662 1733043 A48 657416 8.205 11.141.300
EXPENSES
Salancs 1003 41 a 069842 1 323908 0 4496322
Fringe bencfits 179,835 L] 174,342 L] 2N 0 477.680
Professional’contract services 185270 10,444 133152 410 55650 318 313437
Traveltransporiation 36,497 704 63,793 2,189 32960 1514 353217
Space cosu LRL a 108,364 0 28285 1] 497,987
Benefictary assistance and supplies 72,085 16,2458 NI 1? 87567 613 756,186
Leass ad maimtenance of equipment 2509 i 10,104 ] 3338 1] 73,137
Other IS 357 33,025 460 12924 1,0 184,267
Indirect expenses 158 563 33ls 166,482 g 57,893 H6 768,067
Commoduty (ood distnbuted a 0 ] ] ] 0 0
Payments 1o subgranices i 0 -] a D] 0 o
In-kitnd expenses [1] 0 132,102 ] 1] [i] 2,331,810
Total Expertses 1817219 41562 2,733.043 348 657416 8,205 11142500
Change in Net Assets 0 0 L] L] a 0 ]
Net asscts - Begining of the year 1] o [} a 4 0 a
NET ASSETS = End of the year 9 L 1 n s [ 0 S [} 0 L]
Sece Independent Auditor's Report. 27



Northwest Michigan Community Action Agenecy, Inc. and Affiliates

Schedule A-11
Schedule of Program Activity
Year Ended September 30, 2018

FEDERAL PROGRAMS
Depariment of Health snd Huiman Services
23,602
Auwwets for Asusts for Avnzety for
Independence Independence Indepandsnce Total
Damonstration Demanatrstion Demonstration 13802 Fadersl
SOE08IT/0T SOEIOTEAIO1 $OEI0NBE/01 Subtotsl Programs
(] [ ]
REVENUE
Prior year's grane funds received in advance s ] 45276 % 29 $ 155515 % 72142
Federal grant mambursement revenue ] 4] 1] 1] 14,432,990
Saate and local gramt resmbursement revenue [1] 4] o 1] 312307
Performance contract revenue ] 0 0 ] 0
Comimodiies food recetved L] 0 0 ] 356,627
Grant funds received i advance '] 19,5001 1106.0381 1124,518) {774.068)
Grant revenue 1] 25776 4201 29977 iS.bU‘).liB
Project wicoime 4] L] L] 0 462,078
Sale of Homes 0 L L] [ 113,934
Investment inkome: '] 121 3% 47 81l
Donations [4] 1] 0 i} 1,096
Miscellaneous income 0 a L] 0 .01
Teanafers 4] L] L] 0 #3160
In-kind contritantions 1] L] L] 0 2515464
Total Revenue 1] 15897 4557 30,454 18.307,122
EXPENSES
Salaries L) 3381 H.21% 1,506 6270284
Fringe benelits o 121 1,682 1503 1,252,606
Professional/coniract services 1) 18 57 78 1,188.075
TravelAransportation 0 0 0 I} 455,462
Space tovy L] o 0 L] 625236
Beneficiary assistance and supplica 0 47,000 0 47,000 1.798.059
Lease and macntenance of equipment i) 0 0 9 176098
Other 1 27 8 kL] 261,97
leulirect expenses [} 28 6 1,221 1027, 700
Comtriodity food distributed 0 0 0 L1} #11,603
Payments to sbgmniccs 0 0 0 0 215519
In-kind expenscs {) 0 I i) 2518464
Totsl Expenses { 51.672 8.758 60.430 18.667.098
Chanwe in Net Assets il 125.775) 4.201) {29.976) Ho.024
Net assets - Beginning of the year 1.500 43275 110.239 147,014 162014
NET ASSETS « Enid of the year b1 1500 19500 § 106038 S 11%0m 3 Jorols
See Independent Auditor's Repont g



Northwest Michigan Community Action Agency, Inc. and Affiliates

Schedule A-12

Schedule of Program Activity
Year Ended Seprember 30, 2018

REVENUE

Prar year's grant funds received in advance

Federal grant retmbursement revenue

Statc and local grant retmbursement revenue

Pesformance contracl fevetue
Commodies food recerved
Grant funds received 1o advance
Grant revenue

Project income

Salc of Homes

Investment income:

Donations

Miscellancous incoee

Indirect Income:

Transfen

In-kind contnitrgions

Total Revenue

EXPENSES

Salanes

Friage benefits
Professiomalizontract services
Traveltransportation

Space costs

Beneficiary assistance and supphics
Lezse and maintenance of equipment
Other

Inbireet expenses

Commadity lood distnbuted
Payments o subgranieey

In-kind expenses

Totsl Eapenses

Change in Net Assets

Met asects - Beganung of the year

NET ASSETS - End of the year

Sece Independent Auditor’s Report,

STATE AND LOCAL PROGRAMS
County County
MSHDA 3 MEHDA at Emmet ol Emmat
ESG Housing Youth Youth [~
Additlonsi k ! Summit Entry K
HML-2018- Services Sead Grant Demonstration Stipend COC MID48- Program Bpet. Frogram Spec.
0107-ESM 17-36-HEP 22788 Project Suppart ASFO01500 Funds 14 -17 Funds 16.12
(L) [CE] [ [ (] m (] m
o 3 0 v.709 0 3 g 3 4 360 o [
1] Q 0 i} Q 0 o ]
56 9,500 0 12,654 1500 '] e Rir ] 13,413
a 0 0 9 i ¢ o o
a 0 0 0 0 ] 0 ]
i 0 4. 269 { 1500y 1] 4] 1]
) 29,500 3HU 12,654 [t} 4,860 THUTE L3415
L 0 2.500 0 0 o 0 0
{1 1] [ 0 0 ] 9 [
0 ¢ o 0 0 a 0 0
0 ] 800 ] ¢ Q 0 0
0 L) o o ¢ Q 0 0
0 L) o [1} [} Q 0 [}
13 o 1] o L) L] 0 ¢
[ 0 [!] 4] [ L) { [\
856 29.500 £.240 11654 1] 4460 TA.078 13413
L] 737 0 a 0 0 1] 1]
o 403 0 o 1] 0 o I
0 L] 1.650 12348 ] 1418 14,566 1709
0 0 0 9 @ ] o i}
a ] 0 9 U ] 0 Q
EELY 0 " L] L] 1] 59,868 11318
Q 0 0 0 0 [} o 9
L1} 0 Q 4] 0 o o 5
0 2360 o 6 0 H2 Lodd mn
L) Q ¢ 0 0 1} 0 0
0 4] ¢ 0 0 4] L] 0
0 1] [1] 0 0 1] 0 0
156 19.500 A.740 12654 1] 4.860 78.078 13405
(] [} o 1] 0 1] 0 1]
1] [1] [t ] (} 0 1) [1]
[ 1 (1] ] L 1 o 3 0 (1] (1]
2



Northwest Michigan Community Action Agency, Inc. and Affiliates

Schedule A-13
Schedule of Program Activity
Year Ended September 30, 2018

REVENUE

Pnar years grant funds received 1n advance
Federal gramt reimbursement revenue
State and local grant retmbursement revenue
Perfonmiance conlract revettu:
Commodities food received

Grant funds received in advance
Grant revenue

Prmect income

Sole of Homes

[hvesament income

Donshiony

Miscellancouy income:

[ndirect Income

Tiansfers

Eti-kind contribulions

Total Revenue

EXPENSES

Salaries

Fringe benefits

FProfessional/contract services
Traveltransporiation

Space cosls

Tenefictary aswistance and supplics
Lease and maintenance of equipment
Orher

Imudirect expenses

Cuitumodity food distribted
Payments 1o subgramices

Indind expenscs

Total Expenses

Change in Net Asseis

Net asscts - Beginmng of the year

NET ASSETS « End of the yesr

See Independent Auditor's Report.

STATE AND LOCAL PROURAMS.
Bengls Bentie W M tocal Planning
County County Suppartive Youth Cherryland
< I [ {7 Elsctyic Systam Bantle Ca. Wendont Co.
Chest Chest Consultant Project C Program Inc. Program ine.
2017 018 Contract Cash Match Caring Fund Contract Cantract
[+11] [1]) (] im i i)

6454 9 5 o 3 LI 4 Hs LU ¥ g s 1]

L] ] o L 1] 0 /] ]

L] 7500 93,062 150 L] 6470 100 353 T3

1] L1] [} 0 (1] {9 b [ ]

L] 1] ] /] (] U] Q [ ]

15} 7.500_1 0 75!!_! { 45) ¢ r..m_u { &.914) a

[RET] 1] 43,062 [} A [} 13 7.379

0 0 a ¢ [} 0 L) a

0 0 L] o [} 0 ) a

0 0 9 [} 1] [} 0 ]

0 o L] 1] 4] ¢ 0 ]

1] o ] ] 0 1] 0 a9

[1] 1] o (1] 4] 1 ] 9

1] ¢ {1} 1] 9 [} 0 Q

[1] [1] i 1] ] [1] 1] 0

6439 [} 9.062 L] L] a 93634 I

o L] 65397 0 0 L] 12,797 6,332

@ L] 15,260 0 L] o L 336

[H 1} 26 i1 0 o 7 0

] ] 32039 u L] 0 s 63

[} a /] a 4 1] ¢ 0

6,439 a 36 Q 367 [} 76,21 62,321

[} il ¢ 1} 0 i} o 0

a i} 996 Q 0 Q 169 9

0 0 6,038 L] 33 1} 1o 209

0 0 1] L] 0 1] +] ]

q a ] 0 0 Q 0 0

0 1] [ {1 0 1] 0 [

6,439 1] 93,062 0 SO 1} 9).634 N3

0 ] ¢ 0 L] L] a ]

1] 1] ] it (} ] 3] [1]

] [ I o % 0 S 1] [ I 3 ¢ 3 0

10



Northwest Michigan Community Action Agency, Inc. and Affiliates

Schedule A-14

Schedule of Program Activity
Year Ended September 30, 2018

REVENUE

Prior year's grant funds received in advance

Federal grant reimbursement revenue

State and local grant reimbursement revenue

Perfcrmance contract revenue
Commedines food received
Grant funds received m advance
Grant revenue

Project income

Sale of Homes

Invesoment ncome

Donations

Miscellanecus income
Indsreet Income

Transfers

In-kind conmbunons

Total Revenve

EXPENSES

Salanes

Fringe benefits
FProizssionalcontract services
Traveltransportatton

Space costa

Tlencficiary asustance and supplies
Lease ond maimenance of equipment
Other

Tndirect expenses

Commendity food distnbuted
Payments lo subgrantees

In-kand expenses

Total Expenses

Change in Net Assets
Het susens + Beginming of the year

NET ASSETS - End of the yesr

See independent Auditor's Report,

STATE AND LOCAL PROGRAMS
Ently Childhsod {EC} Progrems
MelghborWorks a.TACF.

Qrand Q Works Bustainabk Youth Aotary Charities TBA 15D Char-Em ISD
Travarua Co. Neighborhood Week Homeownsrship Advisiory Bosrd Tesn OsAP
Program ine, Impact GW.2017-8877- 2018-8827-0504- Cammunity Housing Program Program

Contract Program @17.0UT ouTs Project Project 2010/2018 2018/2018
= [[=]) 1) (] [ (3]
0 5 00§ 46§ wEEy 8 o L] et § 0
L] [} [} Q [t L] 9 1]
0,487 ] o T000 3,550 75,000 1007 12,642
1} o ¢ o 4] Q v [}
(] o (1] [ 1] 0 0 o
1297 { 2000 L] 41,737) ] ) 0 1
LN ] 146 33,146 1,550 75,000 34931 12,642
0 i} ° 1] ] a 0 0
Q o 0 1] L} 10 0 aQ
a O ] a 0 u 0 1]
o i a a L) i 0 ]
a i U a 0 [ [ Q
o i o L 0 [ 1] 0
o ¥ U o 0 [ fedy L)
i} [ il U 1] & [} ]
£.190 0 146 23,046 P 75,000 067 12642
a L] 0 28,360 1] ] o 4,736
Q 1] 0 B84 ] 1} o 1.008
] L 0 1,823 32 L] 0 Q
2 0 0 o0 252 a 0 2
) 0 [ 14 L] o 376 4982
5,005 0 [ 2,151 56 0 1562 1,837
1] L) o [ ] o 1] Q 1}
n L] 133 14 0 0 129 LE}
132 0 13 484 u 0 L] o
o 0 o -] o 4] 0 o]
4] 0 ] L] 0 75,000 0 o
0 ] 1] L] ] 0 1 0
£.190 0 145 53,146 3550 75,000 3067 12.641
o 0 [1] a L1} a [+
it i a 1 i i 0 0}
0 3 0 $ L L ] L] 0 0 3 0
Edl



Northwest Michigan Community Action Agency, Inc. and Affiliates

Schedule A-15
Schedule of Program Activity
Year Ended September 30, 2018

STATE AND LOCAL PROGRAMS
Early Childhood |EC) Programa
Wentard- Wexford-
Missauhee (5D TEA 18D TBA 50 COOA 3D COOR TBA 15D Char-£Em IS0 Mizssulies ISD
GSAP GSAr GSAr GSRP 150 GQsAr GERP GSRP
Program k1 L Canry L Pragram Program Progtam Program
2018/2019 201272018 2017/2018 2017/2000 201772018 201372018 20132018 201742018
1) 1] ) 3 i) [L.1] [L]] im

REVENUE

Pror year's grant funds received in advance $ 876§ o 5 0 % a $ o s 0 5 0 s 0
Federal grant reimbursement revenue L] o 0 4 ] L] 0 0
Stane i local grant rexmbursement revenue 0,196 31.69% 30 2624 46,347 i58.0t0 283,128 47241
Performante coniract revenue 0 0 o i @ 0 0 o
Commeoditics food recewed 0 L] 1] it o 0 [ [1]
Crant funds received in advance 0 L] 1L 1} 0 [ 1] {
Grant revenoe [EXTE] 31.6% 13 2o AT 588,100 248,128 54724
Project income ¢ L] o [ 0 1] o 0
Sale of Homes ] 0 o o 1] ] o 4]
[nvestmient income o 0 o o 0 o 0 a
Donationy [1} 0 o [} 9 o 4] ]
Misce!bneouy income: o [} o o L] L] 0 ]
Indirect Income 1] 0 4] o 0 [+] Q 0
Transfers { 8,716} i3 V] o i) 1] Q i)
Tn-kyrd comtnbutions 1] Q 1] L] 0 ) L]
Tatal Revenue 10.1% 37,696 130 2614 45347 £83.1 10 258128 1.2
ENPENSES

Salasies 3.097 U] U] 0 35,853 433,636 198,836 97,672
Fringe benefits 578 ] L] 0 8,583 87,074 44332 T1.846
Professionalicontract services L] o L] 0 [} L] 300 1166
Travelaransponation 1] 31.6% 130 2624 1] 3508 140 4,088
Space costs 0 0 0 1] (1] 14613 18,300 6,700
Beneficiary assistance and supplics 42401 [+] 0 Q [} ke L 12,485 3118
Lease and maintenance of cquipment L1} [ 0 0 [} 588 e 1,884
Other 280 0 0 L] ] 5,603 83| 5872
Indirect expenses 0 0 0 9 (K111 12430 19206 10498
Commodiry food distribued 0 ] 0 L] o 0 '] 1}
Paymenis 1o subgrantees ! ] 0 L] [ n 0 1]
In-kind cxpenscy 0 i} ] [ 1] 0 [ [}
Tota) Expenses 10,196 37.6% 130 .64 46447 258,150 188128 541144
Change in Net Assets L] 0 o L] 1] [ 0 L]
Net asscis - Beguuung of the year 0 L] 1] L] 0 0 [1] 3
NET ASSETS - End of (he year 3 i § 0 8 [ I 9 3 o 5 [ 1 [ ] L]

See Independent Auditor's Report



Northwest Michigan Community Action Agency, Inc. and Affiliates

Schedule A-16

Schedule of Program Activity
Year Ended Sepiember 30, 2018

REVENUE

Prior year's grant funds received in advance

Federal grant reimbursement revenus

State and local grant reimbursermnent revenue

Performance contract revenue
Commoditics food reeerved
Grant furxls received in advance
Grant revenue

Project income

Sale of 1omes

[avestment income

Denations

Miscetlancous income

Iadirect Income

Tramafers

Tn-kend toninbutions

Tatal Revenue

EXPENSES

Salacies

Fange benefits
Profeasional/coniract senaces
Travelransporation

Space conts

Beneficiary assistancs misd supplies
Lease and tmaintenance of equiprment
Onher

Indirect expensey

Commodity lood disinbuled
Payments to subgranices

Inkind expenses

Total Espenses

Change inn Net Assets

Nel pxmcty - Beginning of the year

NET ASSETS - End of the year

See Independent Auditor’s Report,

STATE AND LOCAL AS
Early Chikdhood [EC} Programs

Waenford- Cantral Laka Great TEAISD TBA-I5D Charlevain-

Misssukes 15D CLED Cantsal Start 5 to One Sievenson Wilsen EmmetISD

GSAr First Steps Lake CLEO Quakity Service Setvice Sevice Child Cate

A » M L - b
0tT/2018 Fr18-8118 Frograms Camter 01/18-2/18 $18-9/13 10/17-9/18 Program
() ] (i) e {1631 (1an [ tos)
3 0o s 0 5 LU ] 0 3 [ L] g % 43,70
1] L) 0 Q o 0 0} 0
20,164 9317 39,394 339,107 1964 15134 51728 .47
] 0 ¢ 4] [¢] i} 0 a
o 3 ¢ [ Q o L) }
0t A74010) { 17.543) L] ] 1] AU 44.621)
N 1wt 21,851 EETATTH 8564 15,134 31T 71,184
] o [H] ] L] o o L)
4] o ] [i] 0 1] 1] A
4] [ [+ 2] U i} ¢ 0
L L] 1} 9 0 Q ) 0
9 ] L] Q 0 Q o [}
L Li] @ 0 1] ] o ¢
0 0 L 1] 0t Bo} 4] o
0 L] 0 L] 1] 0 0 a
.64 11.907 HE Inao? 8.9564 15,058 51,718 71254
5582 3438 15027 270964 6,336 £0,5%9 4534 0
M3 1,088 2092 31497 2184 1463 4821 [}
] 1] 37 ] o [ 0 65,937
14.289 150 330 ] 0 637 236 L]
] 3,000 w01 o 4] o 0 Q9
0 3,038 1.504 o a o 330 1,500
Q 148 o [} 1] ¢ 1] 0
350 153 m ] 0 o 430 1817
L] 7% 1,987 16,646 424 1,369 4187 0
0 [+ [} Q 7 1] [} 0
0 4] 0 L] 0 0 1] 0
4 L] L] 0} 0 ) [ [
21,164 11907 21.851 35107 B.964 15058 37,718 T1.284
0 0 1] 0 o o [} o
0 L) 0 ) (} [1] n 1]
5 [ ] 0 3 L 1 9 3 [ I 1 | I 3 a
13



Northwest Michigan Community Action Agency, Inc. and Affiliates

Schedule A-17

Schedule of Program Activity
Year Ended Seplember 30, 2018

fIEVENUE

Prior year's grant funds recetved in advance

Federal grant rembursement revenue

State and local prant reimbursement revenue

Perfomriance contract revenue
Commoditics food receved
Grant funds received wn advance
Grani revenue

Prmyject income

Sate of Homes

[nvestment income

Deaations

Misceltancous. income

indsrect [ncome

Tramfers

Tn-dutid contribulions

Total Reventse

EXPENSES

Salaries.

Fringe benefits
Professional/contract services
TravelAransportauon

Space cosls

Beneliciary asnistance and supplics
Lease and maintenance of cquipment
COrher

[ndirect expenses

Comtmodsty food distnbuted
Pxymenis to subgraniees

Fo-hind expenscs

Total Expenses

Change in el Assets
Net asicly - Begmmng of the year

NET ASSETS - End of the year

Sce Independent Auditor's Report

STATE AND LOCAL PROGRAMS
Contral Lake Asising A
Buliding CLED Aesder Wexiard Cantrel Lake
Haalthy Comm. First Staps Family Program County Foundation Friends
Benzls Program Vacation Crowth Geant. Baby Programs of
7/17-8/18 Fund 2014-0839 Closat 20112018 Alsnaon
an {10 i) m) (131 ma
o 3 5m9 s [ ¥ 962 0 o s 931 ]
o o 1} o ] o Q [}
2.500 46877 o 0 0 ] 85,704 1]
o o 1] 0 1] o ¢ o
] o Q u ¢ ] ¢ o
A0%) ] ] L] [ [i] [ 0
TWS 37666 ] D62 [ ] 95156 0
Q '] 0 0 24580 Q 4] ]
9 3 L1} 0 (] Q [+] ]
0 L) 0 0 [} 0 4] 1]
L] 0 3390 L o 0 q ]
i} 0 0 0 4] 0 0 L]
i 0 1] 0 ] 1 L] L]
[ [ 4] 0 L} 0 0 0
[ 1] 1] 1] L] 0 1] 0
1,605 22666 3390 962 2.480 [] 94,156 4
L] 13.140 o L] 1 1] 373 4]
L] 4413 [] [] 0 ] 10.369 o
] 2al v o 1640 o 1,255 o
a 19 a o 0 o 1,395 ]
a 10668 ] 0 0 (] 9.613 (1]
1608 14,192 139%) L1 A ity 6423 L)
i i1 ] 0 4] ¢] a [
a 52 ] a ] +] 20 o
0 1964 L] RE 182 0 7812 4]
i a i 1] [1} aQ o 0
i 0 o {1 1} i} ] u
il it il i { 4] [ 1]
1608 5666 3390 962 1313 066 Y5.156 []
n a 0 a 158 966) Q [
{: L] )] it im 3607 1] 101
9 3 9 s 0 S 9 3937 164 S ] 101
—
M



Northwest Michigan Community Action Agency, Inc. and Affiliates

Schedule A-18
Schedule of Program Activity
Year Ended September 30, 2018

STATE AND LOCAL PROGRAMS

TBA 5D & Manistes Grand Trand Waxtord
Child Venture Maldens G820 County Traverse Traverss County
Development North of Michigan Participation Millags County Millage County Millage Miltage
Contriturtions Contract Fund Banus Program 2018 a7 2018 2017
[R327) 18] nay i1n [EiL] [13) 113 i
REVENUE
Preor year's grant funds reeeived 1n advance ] 0 % 0 s 1290 % [T [ 1 1000 § [1] L]
Federal grant reimbursement revene 0 0 0 0 a ] ] L]
State and local grani reimburssment fevetiug 0 13,331 0 L) 12,000 L) 20,000 5.000
Performance contrac) revenue [} [ ¢} o 0 L 0 o
Commodities food received 0 ] a o 0 0 o 0
Grant funds recesved in advance 1] [ 1.500) 4] '] 0 2000y v
Gran| revenue 1] 13331 211 Q [EXTTH) 3,000 135,000 Aot
Project income 1} L1} 9 Q ] 0 1} [1]
Sale of Homes. L] [+ L] 1] ] 0 ] [
Invesiment income ] o 1] L] 0 i) 9 ]
Donations [ 1} 1L.9H ] 0 1] L] 0
Mlisceilaneous income o 0 i L] 0 ] L] L]
Imirect income 0 ] 0 L] 0 ¢ L L]
Transfers o 9 1 0 0 1] 0 LU
In-kind contrsbutions '] 0 0 0 n [1] 0 4
Total Hevenue ] 1333 1.7} 0 JZLOW0 10w 15.000 5.000
EXPENSES
Salanes 0 a672 0 0 0 L1sS 3,465 1,155
Fringe benefits ¥ pA L] ) 0 0 348 1,035 45
Professional/coniract sctvices. 1 4 [} 128 ] 1] [ 1]
TravelAransporiation i &R0 o 67 12,000 ] i) 3
Space cons o 0 1] 150 1] o o 1]
Beneficiary assistance and supplics i 4] 1,783 it [ 1500 10,500 3,500
Lease pnd maintenance of equipment I‘- 0 ¢ L ] ] U] []
Crher [ 0 [ 1020 1] 0 L] ]
Indirect expenses. 0 785 L] 22 o L] ] 1]
Commadity food dignbuted o 4] o ] a L] o 1]
Payments 1o subgrantces '} ¢ o [] ] L] 0 [
Inkind expenses [ [1] 4] 0 0 0 [+] 0
Total Exprenses [] §3331 1,783 1337 12,000 5.000 15.000 5000
Change in Net Assety 0 13 o 2330 2 0 1]
Nel aasels - Bepnning of the year 1.h73 [1] il 7,108 a 0 [i] 0
NET ASSETS - End of the year $ 107§ [} LI ] 5061 5 [ n 3 [ ] ]
— i
See Independent Auditor's Report, 5



Northwest Michigan Community Action Agency, Inc. and Affiliates

Schedule A-19
Schedule of Program Activity
‘fear Ended September 30, 2018

STATE AND LOCAL PROGRAMS

Wenlord Leslansy Leslanau Buliding

County Caunty County Maaly on DTE Hoalthy Live

Millage Millage Milage Whaste of Meals L c Wall

2018 2047 2018 Arnerics Granmt Foundation Manltss Manhtes
ngn {1 124) 11785 1281 zh RE]) [1F: ]

REVENUE
Prior year's grant funds eeceived in advance s g % 1 5 [ 1 0o 5 [ 1 0o s 121§ 38
Federal grant reimburserment revenue ] it 0 0 o [13 0 L}
State and local grant reimbursemenl revernue 15,000 7.000 21,000 AR01 12,500 £ 000 0 0
Performance contract reveme L] o L] 0 o 1] 0 0
Commadities food received 0 [ ] 0 4] ] 0 0
Grang funds received in advance )] 1} ] ] LR [ | L2y 285
Grant resenue 13,000 1000 HELTH 380l 12300 Lo [ (]
Project intotme ¢ [} 3] [} 0 4] ¢ [}
Sale of Homes L] o 4] [ L] Q o [1]
Investment income u u L] o Ll 0 0 o
Donations. o [} 0 i1 0 0 [H] [t}
hhiscellaneous income [} it L] Q 0 0 [} o
Indirect Income 4] it 0 a ] L] ] 4]
Transfers ) o 1] 9 ¢ 0 L] a
In-kind contnbutions 1] 0 ] 1 o 0 1 i}
Totsl Revenve 15.000 7000 21 000 5000 12500 1,000 [ 0
EXPENSES
Salancs 1465 1617 3,851 1987 o pall 0 1
Fringe benelits 1,035 483 1,49 593 1,065 o 0 0
Professional/coniract sctvices 0 L] 5 [ 0 ] 0 0
‘Traveltransportation 0 L] v ¢ Q o )] 0
Space cons } L] 0 1] i ] [ 0
Beneficiary assisance and supplies 12,300 4900 14,700 6,021 4924 700 ¢ ]
Lease and mantenance of equipment ] a /] ] L] 1] ] []
Other o 0 9 o 73 Q o 1]
Inbirext expenscs [} u L1} 200 438 b 0 o
Commadity food distnbwed o a L] 0 0 L] ¢ o
Paymenis lo subgrantees 0 ] L] 0 [} L] 0 o
In-hand expenses '] 11 0 1] 0 0 1] 4]
Total Expenses 15,000 7000 20.000 880 12500 1.000 [ [
Change in Net Assety L] L] L] L] 0 L] ] L]
Net asseis - Beginning of the yeat L] il 0 L] 1] 0 ) i}
NET ASSETS - End of the year 5 0 3 0 5 [ 1 L 1 o 5 [ 1 0D 5 0

See Independent Auditor's Repont. 16



Northwest Michigan Community Action Agency, Inc. and Affiliates

Schedule A-20

Schedule of Program Activity
Year Ended Septernber 30, 2018

STATE ARD LOCAL PROGRAMS
Rotary Charitles
Consumers Traversa Clty MCAAR MIDAP
Ensrgy Development CEDAM M) Enroth Capachy RCO Saturdsy
Discretionary Gram Tex Data Madicsid Buikiing Home Links DS NMCAA Specials
Frageam w2158 Grant Counseling Grant Program 10717 Pragram
({50 22 n [ET] 1381 11 nn
REVENUE
Prior year's grant funds received in advance o 3 30 % 3371 % © 1,283 ¢ o § 0
Federal grant revmbursement revenue a4 0 ] 1] L] 1] 0 4]
State and local gram reimbursement revenue 0 0 1550 0 a ¢ 1000 480
Perfommance contract revenue 4200 1] G 2.2%4 0 1} 4] /]
Commaodriies feod reteived L] 0 L] a ! L] +] U
Grant funds reconved in advance U] 23,700 { 4510 L] 1061 0 0 ]
Grant revenue 3200 T ) I 577 7 G000 Tau
Project income 0 o 0 L] 0 [T '] L]
Sale of Homes 0 ] L] L] 0 o ] L]
Investment income [} 1] L] L] 4] 0 ] L
Donations 0 o 0 L) o [+ Q 50
Museellaneout income 0 o 0 L] 4] 4] ] [1-]
Indirect Income 0 ] 0 0 0 Q 0 ]
Transfers ¢ o 0 4971} i) [i] 9 0
1n-keewd conmbutions (1] [ 0 0 [1] 1] 1) 0
Tatal Revenve 4.200 2 105 16323 £7 1.500 $.000 638
EXNPENSES
Salares L] 0 ] 1,668 o 1143 924 1]
Fringe benefits 1] 0 ] 1994 0 130 225 ]
Profesuional/contract services o o ¢ 3 300 0 0 150
Traveltransportaton it i [1} ¢ [+] 0 0 [}
Space cosls 0 ] o 62 0 L] 0 1]
Beneliciary sanstance and gupplics 4,200 ] 368 250 28 0 0 9Tt
l.£ase and maintenance of cqwpmemt [+] i 1} 27 o 0 1} o
Other Q Q o e 4] L ] 607
Indreci expenses 0 L] k1 1459 52 127 BIR 17
Cammodity food distnbuled 0 0 o [1] 4] 0 } a
Pxyments 1o subgraniees 0 0 o o 9 0 1] ]
In-kind expenses 4] L) [¢] [ } 0 1] 1]
Totsl Eapenses 1200 [1] 403 16313 577 1,400 9,000 1,908
Change in Net Assets @ ] o a 1] [] [ O] 117
et assess - Beginning of the year ] 1) 0 1] 1] 1] 1] .27
NET ASSETS - End of 1he yesr LI 0 5 i 3 [1] 0 [ [ I ] it

Sce Independent Auditor's Report
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Northwest Michigan Community Action Agency, Inc. and Affiliates

Schedule A-21

Schedule of Program Activity
Year Ended Seplember 30, 2018

AEVENUE

Prior year's grant funds received in advance

Federal grant rexmbursement revenue:

Stae and local grant resmbursement revenue

Performance comract revenue
Commodiues (ood receved
Gean funds recesved in sdvance
Grant revems

Project income:

Sale o' Homes

Iavestment income

Donations

Miscetlancous income:

1ndirect Income

Transfers

In<ind contributions

‘Tatal Hevenue

EXPENSES

Salancs

Frnge benclita
rofessional/contract services
Traveliransportation

Space costs

Beneficiary asagtance and supplies
Lease and maienance of equipment
Other

Indirecl expenses

Commodity food distniuted
Payments 10 subgraniees
Inkind expensey

Taial Espenses

Change in Net Aswels
Net assets - Beginning of the year

NET ASSETS - End of the yoar

See Independent Auditor's Report.

STATE AND LOCAL rmmns
MDAF
RCO MIDAP Neighb t 1 Emmet
NMCAA 1418 Non-TANF United Way Sun Trust Counsalor County Cammunity
Reglonal DS NMCAA Help Link E-Home Bank Wentord: Uniity Serviee
Coordlnator 10/08 Fund Amarics Grant Misssukes Fool GAF Fund
O] (L] 140) 14 1 [ N [T

H 145 § o000 0§ 08§ o 3 3z s 9 0 3 0
0 [} 0 0 Q U 0 0
0 1} 0 0 0 0 o 3
0 ] L] 1M 0 L] 0 ]
0 o 0 0 (] 0 ] L]
0 i 20000 0 0 3.122) 0 1] L]
1,455 [ [[E] 2,354 [0 [0 [0 [
[} i) ¢ ¢ 1} 400 o 1,039
1} 0 1] ¢ ] [} o [+]
[1} 0 [} [} o [1] [ i}
] L] o ] o 9 3454 17,967
[} LI | (i3] o a (] 1] Q
i} o 0 o a o Q 4]
q 0 0 1.075) a [} G 0
1] 0 0 Q O ] 1] [
1455 ] [ 1279 [H] 1599 3454 19.006
240 U} ¢ 502 0 0 0 2,383
483 0 1} 261 0 0 4 510
0 0 [} 0 Q 0 1 2]
0 {0 [} L 0 U 0 a
0 Y [} 0 0 4 '] 4
0 0 [H] 0 0 21m 5,263 1513
0 0 v 0 0 0 1] ]
¢ 0 [+] 0 ¢ 0 [} 12
132 1] 0 116 ¢ 70 o 303
¢ ¢ a ¢ ¢ ¢ o o
¢ ¢ ] [} o 1] 1} ]
[ [1] } 1] [ 1] 1] 0

|.458 1] ] 1379 0 2173 5263 1803
] 1] L] 1] o | ) 1.0y 1203
[ (1] ] 1] b 5.612 4516 14.R51
H n 3 g 3 0§ a s L1 4838 107 8 17,058

E— ——
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Northwest Michigan Community Action Agency, Inc. and Affiliates

Schedule A-22
Schedule of Program Activily
Year Ended September 30. 2018

STATE AND LDCAL FROJRAME
NW M
Food Exst Ti
NW M Caslltion Grand Blatnay Natlonsl Catholle Fifth Third Marcantile
Food Farmto Traverse Castle Bank Faders) Bank Bank
Coslition Nalghbor Baby Pantry Fusl Fund Grant Ctedit Union Orant Grant

1140 nar nm am) 1159) [1L1]] 1180 [R15])
REVENUE
Prior year's grant funds reccived in advance 5 o (R 3 B [V 2943 2500 8§ 6148 5 750
Federal grant reimbursement revenuc o i} i [+ ] [i] 0 0
State and local grant reimbursement revenuc i [V [ [ pELI] [1] 5,000 0
Performance contract revenue i [ [ i a o 4] 0
Commaodities food recenved i} [ ] ] a 0 ] [
Grant funds received i advance [ [ ] @ ¢ Slul) 2.5000 10639 o O6RY
Grant revetue [ [] [] [] 3 g A 12
Project income [ -] ] a a [} 0 ]
Sale of Homes ] L] L] ] o 1] L] [}
Investment income L} [1} o o ] 0 0 (1}
Donatiany 3739 8,120 431 1,715 L] ] 0 1]
Miscellancous income [} [ o 4] L] ] 0 [
Indareer Income: o o 4] 4] L] ] 0 o
Teansfers L] 0 0 4] 0 0 0 L]
Inkind contrituiions 4] 0 0 1} 1 L] [1] 1}
Total Revenue 8.739 28,120 4371 11.718 93 ] 9 .34
EXPENSES
Selancs Q L] L] Q 4] 0 1] 0
Fringe benefits /] 9 0 0 0 0 ¢ 0
Professional’contract services Q 0 0 0 0 1] ] Q
Traveltransporiation g 0 0 L] ] 0 L] L]
Space cous L] L] L] 0 [ 0 1] L]
Tenefictary assimance and supplics 21400 009 5313 5,630 172 0 413 (]
Lease and mamnienance of equipment L] L 0 0 ] [} o !
Other L] 1 0 0 A4 0 o 15
Indirect expemscs 9 0 [ 0 n i3 46 7
Commaodity food distnbwed 0 0 0 0 1} ¢ 4] 0
Paymenus to subgrantees 0 0 0 0 [ ¢ 0 0
In-kund expenses 0 0 0 0 0 1] 0 [1]
Tatad Expeniscy 24409 4909 3573 3.680 i) ] 509 a2
Change in Net Ausets { 13.570) 23381 499 6,015 [} o /] [}
Net axicts - Begenning of the year 2444 1] (AN G)] 32,960 1] 1] 1] 1]
NET ASSETS - Ead of the year 5 1214 § 321§ 15599 § 3998 % L] [ 1 o 3 [}]

] I

See Independent Auditor's Report.



Northwest Michigan Community Action Agency, Inc. and Affiliates

Schedule A-23
Schedule of Program Activity
Year Ended September 30, 2018

STATE AND LOCAL PROOGRAMI OTHER
Tatal
Chembeal State and Head Stant Keop The Addlsan F. FMS Fes Home

Bank Local Parent Senior Wheels Wikber R. Smih Far Rehsb

Grant rams Funds Funds Rolling Fund Futik Satvics Fundraising

1184} st 1158) {151 [LE] o] ) [L3]
REVENUE
Priot year's grant funds recetved on advance $ 3591 % 30065 % o 3 o s I LU v s AL 1 ]
Federal grint miminesement raenne [ 1] i} o il L] 0 0 L]
State and local grant reimbursenent revetue o 2931726 4] 4] [V 0 0 0 ]
Performance contract revenue 1} 17848 Q 19,060 [V 0 13 0 0
Commaodities food received ] 0 0 L] [ 4} [ [ 0
Grant funds received in advance ( 3860 | 268.919) L] ] 1] ] {} 1] 0
Geant revenue i3] 246,720 [ A Ubl [ ] [ [ 1]
Project income [} 8319 0 L) L] ¢ o 489 0
Sale of Homes (1] L] 0 1) -] (] [} 1) 0
Invesument income o L] 0 L] a 0 o [ ¢
Donations 0 81,100 A08 0 63175 1] o 190 185
Mliscellzneous income 0 L] 244 133 43 L] 0 43 ]
Indirect Income ] 0 o 0 0 a 0 1] [1]
Transfers [ ] 15,702} o 19,193 ( 51,2214 ] 0 4] 1]
In-kind contnbutions [i] 0 1] 0 1] a 1] 1] [1]
Totsl Revenue ] 020427 1052 [ 6,002 0 [} 1311 158
EXPENSES
Salaries 0 1693826 o o B4 0 o LT o
Fringe betefity ] 345,765 ] o 1 a L] 415 0
Professionalicontract services 0 113,682 0 [} 293 i} 0 46 4]
TravelAransportalion 0 1470 [+] [} 0 9 0 L1} 17
Space costs 0 69,283 [} [H] 0 0 7 15 i}
Beneficiary assistance and supplies n 364,409 720 [} 1,962 i) 0 508 aQ
Lease and maimenance of equipment 0 1397 0 1] L] L] 0 0 ]
Oher 13 19546 a i} 3,108 1] 0 9% 1]
Imsfireet expenses. 2 130,712 78 '] 346 0 0 e 1
Commodity food distnbuted ] ] ] ] 0 L] 0 0 L]
Payments (o subgrantees 4] 75,000 ] Q 0 0 0 0 a
In-hind cxpenses [ o [ [’ [0 1 0 0 [
Total Expenses 4 1.999.150 Bsa [ 6001 1 [1] 2380 18
Change in Net Ancts 1] nan 194 o 1] n L] in) 167
Nel assets « Beginning of the yoar [1] L17.0114 1] [1] 1] 16287 140 1487 106
NET ASSETS - End of the year L 0 3 Lase  § 4 3 L § [ 1 26,287 § 1940 § 4429 § 763

— m— m—
See Independent Auditor's Repon. a0



Northwest Michigan Community Action Agency, Inc. and Affiliates

Schedule A-24
Schedule of Program Activity
Year Ended September 30, 2018

OTHER
DYE
Rasidentisl
Home Energy Emmaet Co. Kalknaky Co, {welsnauCa Grand Traverse Waenlord Ca.

Improvement Efficloncy R ot ] d

Unit Specisi Assistance AHRY HPG HPG HPG HPG Hra

Purposs Fund Program Mortgages Mongages Mortgages Mortgages Mortgages Mortgages

Leaz e 7] [CT) [ [EE] i) (1]
REVENUE
Prior year's grant funds received in advance 5 . ] [ 1 o s I o s o s o s
Federal grant resmbursement revenue d ] 9 ] 0 ] 1}
State and local grant retmbursement revenue ] 1] L] 1] 1] L] i}
Performance contract evenue ] (] 0 L] ] 0 Q
Commaodiues food reccived a o L 0 9 L] 1]
Grand funds received in advance a 0 k] L] L] k] ]
Gran revenue u u [0 [ o [ [
Project income o 15,018 12049 1431 0 0 11,608 3558
Sale of Homes i g 0 0 L] [} L]
Investenent income 0 i} 1) 1] 0 0 0
Donstions i Q9 0 0 L] 0 L]
Miscellancous income 1,738 L] 0 [} 0 1] 0
Indirect Income 0 L] o 0 0 4] 0
Transfcrs 0 19.508 ¢ ] 0 1] [}
In-kind contrbulions 0 1 [ 1] 0 {} 1]
Total Revenue 1.735 38526 12049 1.431 [ '] 1 1.608 5.558
EXPENSES
Satanes [} 0 1] 1] 1] [1] 1]
Fringe benefits ] 0 ] 1] [} a ]
Professionalicantract services ] 0 o ] ] ] ]
Traveltransporiaton ¢ 435 L] 0 ] o [}
Space costs [} 1] [+] o (1} [ [}
Deneficiary asustance and supplics i 300 43 2351 0 [1] o 30 1
Lease and maintenance ol equipment (1} ¢ [i] o o 0 (1}
Other o L} Q 0 o 1] L)
indirect expenses i 30 2478 (3] ] 0 /] 3
Commexdity food distributed ] [} ] a 0 ] a
Prmenty io mbgrantees ¢} (1} L 1] ] Q [+]
In-kindd expenscy [+] 1] L] ] 0 1] 0
Tolal Expenses i 33m 11252 5528 33 L] L] 33
Change in Net Assets LbeS 11,274 6524 1394 [} 0 11572 550
Mat asscts - Dephitung of the year 16,274 37,593 1] 1] s 14,338 10449 1,227
NET ASSETS - Endof the year 5 18339 § 43867 S 5514 % 1398 § 4485 § 13335 § 1121 § 6,769
I — B P

See Independent Auditor's Repont



Northwest Michigan Community Action Agency, Inc. and Affiliates

Schedule A-25

Schedule of Program Activity
Year Ended September 30, 2018

GAAP
QTHER ADJUSTMENTS CORPORATE
HNelghborWorks
Strategic Grant Funded
HPG AHRVE Income Fund: Grant - Housing TOTAL
Morigages Morigeges Mertgages Purchssed Inventory - QAAP FACOAAM Corparats
HAecalvable Pacelvable Pacelvable Equipment ADH Projact Eliminations ACTIVITY Activithos

[§3.1) nn ura [LE: ] [REL] 173y
REVENUE
Prior yeor's grant funds received sn advance 5 o s o s o % o % LU 3 g 3 971,87 § 0
Federal grant remburiemenl revetug ) Q 0 ] 0 ] (4432090 0
State and local grant reimbursement fevenue o 1] ¢ Q i) 0 3131003 3
Performance contract revenue 0 a L] 0 0 1) 116,908 ]
Commodiies food received 0 9 ] 0 0 v §36,627 ]
Granz funds received in advance i) ] 1 1) 0 LU 1042987 [[]
Grant revenue ] [ [} [ 0 1] 15,645,038 [
Project income L] L] ] 0 o 0 21L.47 600
Sate of Homes L] L] o ] 1] 0 113534 H.AM
favestment incoms 0 0 0 0 1] 0 L1k} 14.277
Donations L] L] 0 0 ] ] 146554 7,808
Misceltaneous income o ] 0 i3 o ¢ 304 140,499
Indirect fncome o 0 Q 4] ¢ 1] 0 0
Transfers [+] Q Q ¢ ) (L 43.358) 43,358
In-kind contnbutions 0 ] L] [1] 0t 1.9KL.397) S1L.067 Q
Total Revenue [ ] 0 D] [1] | 198397y 19.9264817 I50.998
EXPENSES
Salarea 9 0 0 [} 0 L) TO74.246 GhEA1S
Fringe benefity 0 0 0 [ i} o 1598028 104,338
Professional/contract servees L] L] 0 o 1425 ] 1.308.521 08450
Traseliransporiation 0 1 0 [+] Q o 44393 1264
Space costs L] L] 0 0 203 0 4,737 53,898
Beneficiary assistance and supplies 13.677 2937 1573 o 197,929 0 4508042 103,077
L2ase and maintenance of equipment L] L] 0 17,001 L] o 156,49 18,762
{hher 0 0 0 ] A5 a 203,197 Ho 4%
Indirect expenscs L] 0 0 ] L] Q 1LI51933 ¢ 1.151.933)
Commeodity food disiribated L] 0 0 4] 0 4] 311,603 0
Payments Lo subgrantees 0 0 4] Q 0 L] 290,519
in-kind expenses 0 0 ) i LU 1.581.397) $34.067
Total Eapetises 13,677 293 | | 673} 17,001 waner 1.981.39% 19.966.803
Change in Net Assets L8 2930 1873 ¢ 17001} ( 208002} 0 ( 1968 |
Net assets - Begining of the year 183.m2 18.960 2711 206811 .02 L] LA217
NET ASSETS - End of the year 5 170115 § 16010 % 484 3 279830  § L 1 LU 1 1.071.150  §

] — — d

See Independent Auditor's Report.




Northwest Michigan Community Action Agency, Inc.

Schedule B-1

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards and List of Programs

Year Ended September 30, 2018

Direct Funding

Passad th

Passed
Federal Grantor / Pass-Through CFDA Pass-Through Entity Theough to Faderal
Grantor / Program or Cluster Title Number Identifying Number Program Ysar  Subrecipients Expenditures
DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE
Passed through Stata of Michlgan, Department of Education
(1} Child and Adult Day Care Food 10.558 280000001 10/01/17 - 09/30/18  § 0 § 175,186
Total Federal Expenditures - CFDA 10.558 0 375386
Food Distribution Cluster
Passed through State of Michigan, Department of Education
(2} Commodity Supplemental Food Program 10 565 280001022C 16/01/17 - 0930718 0 183,031
{)) Commoditv Suppl | Food Program 10563 230001022C 10:01/17 - 69/30/18 [1] 560976
Total Federal Expenditares - CFDA 10.565 [] 744,007
{4) Temporary Emergency Food Assistance Program 10 568 28.000-0001 10/01/17 - 09/30/13 ] 103,815
(5) Temporary Emergency Food Astistance Proeram - Disiribution 10.569 NIA 10/01/17 - 09700/ 18 0 250.627
Tatal Federal Ezpenditures - Food Distribution Cluster (CFDA 10.565, 10.568, & 10.569) L] 1,098,449
TOTAL DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE PROGRAMS 1 1.47).835
DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT
(6} LCHA Comprehensive 14 169 HCIB032 1040 10/01/17 - 03/31/19 o 16,759
(7} LCHA Con!zlehensive 14.169 HC170321019 10/01/16 - 03731418 0 11.359
Total Federal Expenditures - CFDA 14.169 1] 28.118
gh Michigan State Housing Development Authority
{81 CDBG Housing MSC - Wexford Countly 14228 2015-583-HO 0101416 - 1431117 [} 62,154
(21 CDBG Heusing MSC - Charlevoix County 14228 2014-0725-HO 09/01/15-12/31/18 0 33463
(10y  CDRG Housing MSC - Emmet County 14228 2013-0737-HO 02/01/16 - 0%/31/18 o 206,831
(11} CDBG Housing MSC - Grand Traverse County 14 238 2013-0781-HO 0201115 - 123117 0 {12.411)
Toial Federal Expenditures - CFDA 14.228 [ 290,037
Passed through Michigan Stats Housing Development Authority
{12) Emergency Solutiom Grant (ESG)Y i4 231 HAML-2017-0507-ESF 17 - 0930418 131.845 435381
{13) Emercency Solutona Grant {ESG) 14231 HML-2016-0107-ESF 1GL16. 1034717 0 19,275
Total Federal Expemditures - CFDA 14.231 131.845 154,656
Passad throupgh Stata of Michigan: Department of Health & Human Services
{19 Rapid Re-Housing 14235 SHP-17-15006 Yr 2 117 - 09730418 0 116,039
Charlevoux-Emmel-Wexford-Missaukee-pManistee
(151 Family Re-Housing Program (FRP} 14235 SHP-16-15005 Yr 3 1QmIA 7 - 09/ 3018 Q 188,433
Charleveix-Emmet-Wex ford-Missaukee-Manistee
{16) Rural Permanent Supportive Housing Grant 14235 SHP-17-24001 ¥r 2 107001 7 - 0918 ] 224,816
Charleveix-Emmet-Wex lord-Missaukee
Passed through Michlgan State Housing Developmont Authority
{17 Charleveix-Emmet HMIS 14 235 TIML-2016-MI1-5682-HMLS 0301718 - 02/28/19 0 8906
118) Wexlord-Aissaukee HMIS 14235 HML-20E6-MI-5682-HMIS 013/01/18 - 02/28/19 o 8365
{19y Mamistee HMIS 14 215 IML2006-M1-56R2-HMIS 03/00/18 - 022819 L] 5427
Total Federal Expenditures - CFDA §4.135 1] 576,986
Passed through Michigan State Housing Development Authority
(203 Emmet County ADR Project - Home Gram 14239 M-2012-107 06/01/15 - 1Y3117 o 12,747
(21} Home Gront 14 239 A-2013-0107 0116 « 12131717 0 26,522
Toial Federal Expendilores - CFDA 14.239 1 39.269
Direct Funding
(22) Conunuam Planning Grant 14 267 MIOS85L5F 121700 06/01/18 - 05731119 [ | 1000
{23) Continuum Planning Grant 14267 MI05371.5F 1 21600 0X14/17 - 02/13/18 4] 1266
{24) HUD Youth Plansing Grant 14 367 MINSS5YSF121600 0124180123419 0 17.682
Tolal Federal Expenditures - CFDA 14.267 (] 31,948
See Independent Auditor's Report. 43



Northwest Michigan Community Action Agency, Inc.

Schedule B-2

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards and List of Programs

Year Ended September 30, 2018

Passed
Federal Grantor / Pass-Through CFDA Pass-Through Entity Through to Faderal
Grantor / Program or Cluster Title Number Identitying Number Program Yaar Subreciplents Expenditures
DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT (Continued)
Passed through Michigan State Housing Davelopment Authority
Housing Youcher Cluster P'rogram
(25} Famsly Self-Sufficiency Program Housing Chotce Vouche: Proetam 14 871 |6-91-F58 1/01/17 - 12731/18 [ 3028
Total Federal Expenditures - CFIA 14.871 0 8,028
TOTAL DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT FROGRAMS 131848 424,042
DEPARTMENT OF THE TREASURY
Passed through NeighborWorks Amarica
26) NeghborWorks Green Program Dev Grant FY'13-2 21 U0 2013-8527-0056-GPD51 0940913 - undefined 0 39
(27) NeghborWorks Week Grant 21 U0 G-NWW.-2018-45095 05/21/18 - undefined 0 142
(28) NeighborWorks Strategie Investment Fund 21 U0 R-SIF-2018-49535 09/07118 - 09730119 0 L]
(291 NeighborWorks NTI Travel Grant 1.uo0 G-SUP-2018-47837 L0/01/17 - 09730/ 18 0 92600
t30) NeighborWorks [ g Ci ity Health [* hap 21 Uoo G-SUPEXT-2018-50627 08/13/18 - 09/30/19 o 797
1310 NeighborWorks Single Farmly Home Design Biloy 21 Uco 2015.8527-0252.5UP23{2016-8527-0077-TABDT/20/1 5 - undefined 0 9,867
132} NesghborWorks Operaiing Grant 21 Uoo NiA 10/01/12 - undelined 0 L9615
(33) NeighborWorks Permanently Restricted Capital Grant 21 Uo0 N/A Ongoing 0 50,000
(34) NeighborWorks C y Impact M, 21 U0d GW-2017-8527-0293-SUP 06/01/16 - undefined o 1]
{35) NeighborWorks F | Capatulity Evaluation Program 21 100 20 6-8527-0405.8UPI9 08/02/16 - 09/30/18 [} 156
136} NeighborWorks Strategic Investment 21 U00 2016-8527-0102-5IFUNDGE 0901716 - undefined [+] 21,519
137y NeighborWaorks Executive Director Transition 21 U0 G-SUPEXT-2018.-50626 10/01/17 - 05/1018 1} 25,000
(3%8) NeighborWorks Permanently Restricted Emmet County ADR Projec 21 UDO NA 06/01/1% - 05130/18 0 o
139) NeighborWorks Community Development Peer-to-Peer 21 LUoo R-SUPINT-2018-51112 05/06/18 - 05/30/15 0 0
Totsl Federal Elncmliiuru « CFDA 21.100 Public Low #115-31 ] 137,618
Direct Funding
(401 Vol Income Tax Assi 21 009 1TVITADG3D YR2 08/01/17-07/31/18 0 35,000
Tuta) Federal Expenditures - CFDA 21.009 [ 38,000
TOTAL DEPARTMENT OF TREASURY I‘ROGIL-\M_S 1] 172625
DEPARTMENT OF VETERANS AFFAIRS
Direct Funding
{in Mpomve Smig for Veternns Families 4031 13-MI-108 ADAII S &_S_ERIB 10/01417 - 10/31/18 £3.674 629,257
Toisd Federal Expenditures - CFDA 64.033 B3.674 629.257
TOTAL DEPARTMENT OF VETERANS AFFAIRS PROGRAMS 83.674 619,257
DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY
Passed through Stats of Michigan; Department of Health & Human Services
(42) Wenlherizonon Assistance Program 81042 WAPI6.28023-1 47/01/17 - 06/30/18 0 422926
(41) Weathenzauon Assistance Program 81042 WAP16-28023-NFA 10 07/01/18 - 06/30/19 0 73,906
Tatal Federal Expenditures - CFDA 81142 [!] 496,432
TOTAL DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY PROGRAMS 0 496.832
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
Aglng Cluster
Passed through Area Agancy an Aging of Narthwest Michigan
{44} Senipr Nutrition - Corgregate Meals Trtle U1 C-) 93048 NiA L0/ T - 09/30/L8 a 178,297
{45} Sentor Nuirstion - Home Belivered Meals Tile If] C-2 93 045 NIA t0/00/17 - 09120718 0 04,052
Total Federal Expenditures - CFDA 93,045 L] 142,949
Passed through Area Agency on Aging of Northwest Michigan
{46) Nuirition Services Incentive 23051 N/A 10/00/1 7 - 09/ 3118 ] 135,646
Toial Federal Exp 1 - Aging Cluster (CFDA 93.044, 93,045, g 93,083) [ J08.295
See Independent Auditor's Report. 44



Northwest Michigan Community Action Agency, Inc.

Schedule B-3
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards and List of Programs
Year Ended September 30, 2018

Passad
Faderal Grantor / Pass-Through CFDA Pass-Through Entity Through to Federal
Grantor / Program or Cluster Title Number {dentifylng Number Program Year Subraciplents Expenditures
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES (Continued)
TANF Cluster
Passad through The Salvation Army
{47 Salvaton Army Mote! Provider Program 03 558 TSA/NMCAA YR 17-18 10/0001 7 - 9 30/18 0 3R
Total Federal Expenditures - TANF Cluster {CFDA 93,338 & 93.714) 0 3.822
Passed through State of Michigan: Department of Health & Human Services
(48} Weathenzaton LIHEAP Program 93 S68 WAP (LIHEAP)-16-28023.2 NFA#S 020618 - 19/30/18 0 138,900
149)  LIHEAP Crins Assistance 91 56k LCA-15-2802] YR 2 01/M5/18 - 0&31/18 0 665,700
Passad through Michlgan Community Actlon
(50) MCA MEAP MAE ¢(Michigan Agency for Energy) W 568 LOA 20172018 1000017 - ¥U30/18 0 132,300
{51) NICA LIHEAP MAE 3 468 G-18B1MILIEA 1241907 - FU3 118 0 158,760
Total Federal Expenditures - CFDA 93.568 0 1,095,660
Pasaad through Stats of Michigan: Department of Heslth & Human Services
(52) Communsty Services Block Grant ) 569 CSBG-14-28023 Yrd 16/81/16 - 09/30/18 1} 143,358
153} Commumaty Services Block Grant 91 569 CSBG-14-28023 Yr § 1/0E T - 09/30/19 1] 398,508
153y Cormmunity Services Block Grant Discreticnary 93 569 CSRG-D-14-28023 Yr 5 02/21/18 - D901 8 [1] 50,000
Total Federal Expenditures - CFDA 93.569 0 £91 866
Direct Funding
(551 Head Start = Full-Year, Pan-Day 93 600 05CHOI10303.03 01/01/18 - 12/31/18 ¢ 4,327,936
(56) Head S1art - Tramming & Techmical Assistance 93 6K 05CHR10303-03 01/01/18 - 1 2/31/18 ¢ 62,036
(57) Enrly Head Start a3 600 05CHO10303-03 00118 - 131418 0 1817219
(58) Early Head Starnt - Trasming & Technical Assistance . 93600 05CHO10303+03 OI/0/18-12/31/18_ o 42,662
(59) Head Start - Full-Year. Pan-Day 93 600 05CHRI9303-02 GI/o1A17 - 12131117 ¢ 1,901,041
(6G0) Head Start - Training & Technical Assistance 91 600 05CHO10303.02 01/ 0UNT - 1U3N1T 0 3,945
(61) Early Head Stant 93 600 05CHOI0303-02 01N T 1 U3N7T o 657416
(62) Early Head Start - Trameng & Technieal Assistance 93 600 05CH010303-02 01/01/17 - 1231417 0 5,208
‘Total Federal Espenditures - CFDA 93.600 0 $.820.460
Direct Funding
{63)  Assets for Independence Demonstralion Program 93 602 S0EI0627/01 Ended in pricr period "] [
(64)  Asscts for Independence Demonsiration Program 91 602 9GEI0T83/01 0930012 - 09/29/18 0 25.77%
{65} Assets for IndeMence Demonsiratien Program 93 602 DOEIDBS5/01 0530714 - 09/29/19 [1] 3201
Total Federal Expenditures - CEDA 93,602 0 19977
TOTAL DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND IHUMAN SERVICES PROGRAMS ] 10.940.380
TOTAL FEDERAL EXPENDITURES 5 215,519 S 18236971
e — —

See Independent Auditor's Report.
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Northwest Michigan Community Action Agency, inc.

Scheduie B-4

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards and List of Programs

Year Ended September 30, 2018

Fedoral Grantor / Pass-Through
Grantor / Program or Cluster Title

Funding Source / Pass-Through Entity

Program Year

STATE AND LOCAL PROGRAMS
{66) MSHDA ESG Addional HML-2018-0107-E5M

(67} Housing Education Services
17-36-HEP
{68) Youth Housing Imtialive Seed Grant #2186
(69) Supplemental Youth Housing Demonstration Project
(70} MSHDA Homeless Si 5 | Supp

{?) Coordwnated Entry COC
MIMSLSFO0! 500

(721 County of Emmet Homeowner Rebabilitaiion
Program-Special Funds 14+57

{73 County of Emmet Homeowner Rehabelitation
Program-Special Funds 16+18

(74)  Benzie County Community Chest 2017

(75} Benzie County Commumty Chest 2018

{76) Northwest AMichsgan Supportive Housing Consultant Contract

{77} Youth Demonsiration Project Cash Maich
(78} Cherryland Electne Commumity Canng Fund
17 Local Planming Body Systetn Coord. Funds

{80) Benzie County Program Income Cantract
(31) Wexford County Program Income Contract
(52)  Grand Traverse County Program Income Contract
(83) Neighborheod Impact {*rogram
{84) NaghborWarks Week GW-2017.8527.0517-0UT
(85} NeighborWorks 5 ble i
{86) GTRCF Youth Advisiory Board Community Project
{87) Rowary Teen Housing Project
(83) Early Childhood Program - TBA 15D
(89) Early Childhood Program - Char-Em
(90} Early Childhood Program - Wexford -
Missaukee ISD
(91) Early Childhood Program - TBA 1SD
Transpenation
(92) Early Childhood Program - TBA 15D Camryforward
193) Early Childhood Program - CODR IS0 Transporation
(94} Early Childhood Program - COOR 1SD
195} Eatly Childhoed Program - TBA ISD
{96) Early Childhood Program - Char-Em
{97y Early Childhood Program - Wexiord +
Missaukee ISD
(98) Early Childhood Program - Wexlord -
Missaukee Transportaton
(99 Central Lake CLEQ First Steps Program
(100) Central Lake CLEO Foundation Programs
($01) Great Start 1o Quality Resource Center
(102} 5 to One Service Agreement
(103) TDAISD S Senvice A
{104} TRA ISD Wilsen Service Agreement
¢105) Char-Em Child Care Scholarshp Fund
{106} Duilding iealthy Ci ittes Benaie County
1107y Central Lake CLEO First Steps Program
(108) Famaly Vacation Fund
(109) Raising A Reader Program Growth Grant 2014059
{110y ECE Actinty
{111} Wexford County Baby Closet
{112 Cenral Lake Foundation Programs
{113} Fricnds of Alanson

See independent Auditor's Report.

fup 2016-8527-0504-0UT-5

Michigan Sate Housing
Development Authority
Michigan State Housing
Development Authonty
Rotary Club of Traverse Ciry
Michigan Siate Housing
Development Authoruy
Michigan Staie Housing
Development Authorty
Michigan Siate Housing
Developmem Authonty
County of Errmet

County of Emmet

Benzie County Comemunaty Chest

Bertzie County Communiry Chest
Northwest Michigan Supportive Housing
Cash contnibutions

Cherryland Electnic Community Canng Fund
Michugan State Housing

Development Authonity

DRenzie County

Wexlord County

Grand Traverse County

Chemmeal Bank

CITl Foundation/NeighborWorks
Suntrust Bank/Nerghbor\Works

Grand Traverse Regional Cc y Found,
Rotary Chartues of Traverse City

Traverse Bay Area ISD

Chatlevoix-Emmet 18D

Wexford-Missaukee 1SD

Traverse Bay Area IS0

Traverse Bay Area ISD
COOR ISD

COOR ISP

Traverse Bay Area 1SD
Chaslevoix-Emeset ISD
Wexford-Missaukee 15D

Wexlord-Mrssaukee ISD
Grand Traverse Regional y Found
Grand Traverse Regional C y Foundag

Charlevoix-Emmet 1SD

Venture Nonth Funding & Development
Traverse Bay Area ISD

Traverse Bay Arca ISD

Donations

Taste the Loca! Dillference

Grand Traverse Regional Commumty Foundatton

Petoskey+Harbor Springs Area

Raising & Reader

Dues and Fees

Donationy

Grand Traverse Regional C y Found,

Local Fund-raising

0472718 - 09/30/18

o0NT - 0630418

11{G1/16 « undelined
Q60N T - 1203107

07018 - 06301

06/01/17 - undelined

0701714 - undefined

07101716 - undelined

OHOIAT - 1221117
¢1OLA8 - 1213118
10:011N7 - 0930118
07/01/18 - 09/30/19
010N T - 12317
06/07/18 - 1231118

06/14/16 - undefined
01/01118 - undelined
010118 - undefined
GUOIAS « 123017
05/30/17 - undefined
0972116 - undefined
12001417 - 08/31118
ONOLIB - (231118
10/01/18 - 09/30/19
10/01/18 - 09730/19
10/01/18 - 09/30/19

1001717 - 09730018

1001107123117
10/01/17 - 09/30/1 8
1040117 - 09/30/18
10/01:17 - 09/30/18
10:01/17 - 09/30:18
10:01/17 - 09/30/18

10/00/17 - 03018

0701118 - 06/30/19
07/01/18 - 06/30/19
10/01117 - 0930418
01/01/1% - 02/28/18
03/01/18 - 09/30/18
10:01717 - 09/30/18
03/01/11 « undehined
43/01/18 - undelined
07/01/17 - D6/30/18
10/01/17 - 09430/ 8
Lol - 12307
10/01/17 - 059/30/18
10/01/17 - 05/30:18
070117 -06/30/1 8
10:01117 - 05/30/ 18

46



Northwest Michigan Community Action Agency, Inc.

Schedule B-5

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards and List of Programs

Year Ended September 30, 2018

Federsl Grantor/Program Title

Funding Source / Pass-Through Entity

Program Year

STATE AND LOCAL PROGRAMS {Continved}

t114) Child Development Coniributions

1115) TBA ISD & Venture North Contract

{116} Mudens of Michigan Fund

{117y Great Start to Quality Participation
Bonus Program

{118) Mantstee County Millage 2018

{119} Grand Traverse County Millage 2017

(120} Grand Traverse County Mallage 2018

1121) Wexford County Millage 2017

(122) Wexford County Millage 2018

(123) Leelanaw Coumty Miflage 2017

(t24) Leelanau County Millage 2018

(125) Meals on Wheels of Amenca

(126) DTE Meals Grant

(127) Shumsky Foundation

{128) Building Healithy Communities Masstee

t129) Live Well Manistee

{130y C 3 Energy D y Program
{131} Rotary Charities Traverse City Development
Grant #2156

{132} CEDAM Tax Data Grant

{133y MCAAA MI Enrolls Medicaid
Counseling
{134) Capacity Building Grart
{135k Home Links Program
(136} MIDAP.RCO Direct Service NMCAA 10/17
1137) Saturday Specials Program
(138} MIDAP-RCO NMCAA 14/18
Regronal Caordinator
(139) MUDAP Non TANF DS NMCAA 10708

(140) Unated Way Help Link Fund

(141) E-Home Amenca

{142) NeighborWorks Sun Teust Bank Gram
{143 Homeless C, lor Wexfordih: k
{144) Emmet County Utihity Pool

(145) Community Service GAP Fund

{146) Northwest Michigan Food Coahition

1147) Nonhwest Michigan Food Coalition Farm to Neighbor

(148) Grand Traverse Baby Pantry
1149) Blamey Castle Fuel Fund
(1500 Hunungion Nattonal Bank Grang

{151} East Traverse Catholic Federal Credit Union Grant

{(152) Fifth Therd Bank Grant
{153) Mercantile Bank Grant
{154} Chemuca! Bank Grant

OTHER

{155} Head Sart Parent Funds

{156) Semor Funds

1157} Keep the Wheels Rolling

{158) Addison F Wilber Fund

1139 R Smuh Fund

(160) FMS Fee For Service

(161) liome Rehab Fundratsing

(162) Home Improvemeni Lnit Special Purpose Fund

(163) DTE Restdental Energy Eflictency
Asssslance Program

(194 Recapiured AHRY Mongages

(145) Recaptured HPG Mongages Recewvable-Emmel Co
(146) Recaptured HIPG Mortgages Receivable-Kalkaska Co.

(167 R 4 HPG Morigages Recervable-Leel

See Independent Auditor’s Report.

Locol Fund-tassing

Traverse Bay Area ISD

Maidens of Michigan

Early Childhood Invesiment
Corporation

Manistee Ca. Council on Aging
Grand Traverse Co. Comm. on Aging
Grand Traverse Co. Comm. on Aging
Wexford County Council on Aging
Wexlord County Council en Aging
Leetanau County Comm. on Aging
Leetanny County Comm. on Aging
Meals on Wheels of Amenca

DTE Energy Foundation

Shumsky Foundation

District Health Depantment 410
District Health Depariment #10
Consumers Energy

Rotary Charites of Traverse City

o ity E ic Devel
Association of Michigan
Michigan Community Action
Agency Association

Rotaey Club of Traverse City
Habitat for Humaniry
Oakland Eivingsion

Local Coninbutions
Qakland Livingsion

Human Services Agency
Qakland Livingsion

Human Services Agency
United Way of Nerthwest Michigan
Cotmimunity Yemures Corp

Sun Trust Bank/NeighborWarks
Local Contributions

Local Fund-raising

Local Fund-raising

Local Fund-raising

Local Fund-rarsing

Local Fund-mtsing

Local Fund-rarsing

funtingtons National Bank

East Traverse Catholic Federal
Credit Union

Fifih Third Bark

Mereantile Bank

Chemical Bank

Contnibulions

Waiver Program

NMCAA Food Service Fund-raising
Denations

Dunations

Donatons

Donations

Donatrons

[TE Energy

AHRY Second Mortgage Receivable
11PG Second Morigages Receivable
HPG Second Mongages Receivable
1IPG Second Mortgages Receivable

10/00/17 - 09/30/18
1000117 - 12007
10/0715 » unulefined
L0/01/16 - undefined

01/01/18 - 12731718
01/01/17 - 122117
01/01/18 - §231/18
00T - 1231017
01/01/18 « 12131118
OLO01T - 12131017
01/01/18 + 12731/18
10¢401/17 - 09730/ 8
10/01/17 - 09/30/18
10/00/17 - 09/30/18
08/01/16 - undelined
08/00/16 - undehned
01/25/18 - 05/30/18
0X01/14 - undefined

04/01114 - 05/30/19
1VOLE6 - 0331118

09/18/06 - indefinse
FVOT/NT - 0930418
10/01/17 - 09/30/18
10/01/17 - 09/0/18
11/01/14 - 0&/)0/18

10/01/09 - undefined

101417 - 09318
10/01/17 - 09/30/18
3/21/17 - undefined
10:01/17 - 09/30/1 8
10/01/17 - 09/30/18
10/01/17 - 09/30/18
10:01/17 - 0%30/18
10/01/17 - 05/30/18
10/01/17 - 09/30/18
10/01/17 - 0536418
10:00/17 - 09/30/18
10:00/17 - 09730/18

10:001/14 - 0930/ 14
10/01/16 - 09/30/18
10:00/14 - 09/30/18

Ongoing
Ongoing
Ongoing
Ongoing
Crgoing
Ongoing
Onyoing
Ungoing
Ongoing
Ongoing
Ongoing
Ongoing
Ongoing
Ongoing
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Northwest Michigan Community Action Agency, Inc.

Schedule B-6

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards and List of Programs
Year Ended September 30, 2018

Faderal Grantor/Program Title Funding Source / Pass-Through Entity Program Year
OTHER
{168) Recaptured HPG Mortgages Recevable-Grand Traverse HPG Second Mongages Recetvable Ongoing
1169) Recaptured HPG Mongages Receivable-Wexford Co. HPG Second Mongages Receivable Ongoing
{170 HPG Mongages Receivable HPG Second Mortgages Ongoing
{171}y AHRVF Morigages Receivable AHRVF Second Morrgages OUngoing
1172} NetghborWorks Stratepic lncome Fund NW SIF Second Mortgages Ongoing
Mongnges Receivable

(173) Gramt-Purchased Equipment Varous Funding Sources Ongomg
1174) Grant funded Housing Inventory ADR Project ADR Progect Ongong
CORPORATE

1175) Corportate Aclivities Inspection Income. Interest, Ongoing

Misc. Income

Notes to Scheduls of Expenditures of Federa! Awards and List of Programs

Nota 1 - Basls of Presentation

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards snd list of programs (the “Schedule™) inchudes the federal grant activity of Northwest Michigan Community Action Agency. Inc
ander programs of the federal government for the year ended Seprember 30, 2018 The il wn this Schedule is p d in ‘ with the req of Title 2 L'S. Code of
Federl Regulations Part 200, Uniform Ad) wirve Requir Cast Principles, and Audts Requivemenss for Federal Awards (Lmiform Guedunce) B the Schedule p ondy a

selecied portion of the operasions of Northwest Michigan Community Action Agenicy, Inc . 1t 13 not intended to and does not present the financial position, changes in net assets or cash fMlows of
Murthwest Michigan Community Action Agency, Inc.

Note 2 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policlea

Expendilures reporied on the Scheduale are reported on the acersal hasis of Such expend: are recogmzed following (he cost pinciples contained in the Unsform Guidance,
wherein certain types of expend are not allownble or are Linated as to b Pass-through entity identifying numbers are presented where available  Negattve amounts shown on
thic Schedule represent adj or credils made 1n the normal course of business 1o amount reported as expenditures 10 prior years

Note 3 - Indirect Cost Allogation
Northwest Michizan Communuty Action Agency, Inc has clected 1o use 1he | 0-percent de minsmas indirect cost tale as allowed wader the Unifrm Guidance

See Independent Auditor's Report.
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Northwest Michigan Community Action Agency, Inc.
and Affiliates

Schedule C
Schedule of Cash - Restricted - NeighborWorks America
September 30, 2018
Amount Amount Interest Return of Unexpended Restriction Restricted
Grant Name Typa Funded Expended Eamed Restriction Balance Releass Balance
Permanently Restricted CuEi!nl Fund Cash-Restricted S 175,000 S 131171 S 0 $ 127.500 L 171.329 3 0 $ 171,329
TOTAL CASIE - RESTRICTED S 175,000 S 13107 ] 0 S 127.500 S 171,329 S 0 S 171.329

See Independent Auditor’s Report.



WIPFLI

Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on
Compliance and Other Matters

Board of Directors
Northwest Michigan Community Action Agency, Inc. and Affiliates
Traverse City, Michigan

We have audited. in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States. the consolidated financial statements of Northwest Michigan Community Action
Agency, Inc. and Affiliates, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as of September 30,
2018, and the related consolidated statements of activities. and cash flows for the year then ended. and the related
notes to the consolidated financial statements. and have issued our report thereon dated June 17, 2019, The
financial statements of Community Action Credit Counseling, Inc. and Innovative Energy Management, LLC were
not audited in accordance with Government Auditing Standards as those entities did not receive federal funding.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the consolidated financial statements, we considered Northwest Michigan
Community Action Agency, Inc.’s internal control over financial reposting (“internal control") to determine the
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the
consolidated financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
Northwest Michigan Community Action Agency, Inc.’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an
opinion on the effectiveness of Northwest Michigan Community Action Agency, Inc.’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or detect and correct
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements
will not be prevented or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough
to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and
was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that have not been identified.
We did identify a certain deficiency in internal control, described in the accompanying schedule of findings and
questioned costs as item 2018-001 that we consider to be a material weakness.
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Northwest Michigan Community Action Agency, Inc.’s
consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, roncompliance with which could have a
direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit. and accordingly, we do not express such an
opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be
reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Northwest Michigan Community Action Agency, Inc.’s Response to Findings

Northwest Michigan Community Action Agency, Inc.’s response to the finding identified in our audit is described
in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. Northwest Michigan Community Action Agency,
Inc. response was not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and,
accordingly, we express no opinion on it.

Purpose of This Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance, and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control or on
compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not
suitable for any other purpose.

Wipgts LLP
Wipfli LLP

June 17, 2019
Madison, Wisconsin
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WIPFLI.

Independent Auditor’s Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal
on Internal Control Over Compliance

Board of Directors
Northwest Michigan Community Action Agency, Inc. and Affiliates
Traverse City, Michigan

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited Northwest Michigan Community Action Agency, Inc.’s compliance with the types of compliance
requirements described in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Compliance Supplement that could
have a direct and material effect on its major federal program for the year ended September 30, 2018. Northwest
Michigan Community Action Agency, Inc.’s major federal program is identified in the summary of auditor’s
results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Management'’s Responsibility for Compliance

Management of Northwest Michigan Community Action Agency, Inc. is responsible for compliance with federal
statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions of its federal awards applicable to its federal programs.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for Northwest Michigan Community Action Agency,
Inc.’s major federal program based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We
conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States;
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards. issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States; the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part
200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards
(Uniform Guidance). Those standards and the Uniform Guidance require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to
above that could have a direct and material effect on 2 major federal program occurred. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis. evidence about Northwest Michigan Community Action Agency, Inc.’s compliance with
those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for the major federal program.
However, our audit does not provide a legal determination on Northwest Michigan Community Action Agency,
Inc.’s compliance,



Opinion

In our opinion. Northwest Michigan Community Action Agency, Inc. complied, in all material respects. with the
types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on its major federal
program for the year ended September 30, 2018,

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of Northwest Michigan Community Action Agency, Inc. is responsible for establishing and
maintaining effective internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to
above. In planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered Northwest Michigan Community
Action Agency, Inc.’s internal control over compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and
material effect on the major federal program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for the major federal program and to test
and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express
an opinion on the effectiveness of Northwest Michigan Community Action Agency, Inc.’s internal control over
compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance
does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent
or detect and correct noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis.
A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies. in
internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a
type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented or detected and corrected on a timely
basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of
deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is
less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention
by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not
been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of

internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform Guidance.
Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

Wipgts LLP
Wipfli LLP

June 17, 2019
Madison, Wisconsin
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Northwest Michigan Community Action Agency, Inc.

and Affiliates

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year Ended September 30,2018

Section | - Summary of Auditor's Results

Financial Statements
Type of auditor’s report issued?

[nternal control over financial reporting:
Material weaknesses identified?
Significant deficiencies identified?

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted?
Federal Awards
Internal control over major federal programs:

Material weaknesses identified?
Significant deficiencies identified?

Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance for major program:
yp p p Jor progr

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in
accordance with the Uniform Guidance [2 CFR 200.516(a)]?

Identification of major federal program:

U.S. Department of Health and Human Services

Head Start

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B programs:

Federal

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?

Unmodified

Yes
No

No

No
No

Unmodified

Yes

CFDA No.

93.600

$750,000

Yes
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Northwest Michigan Community Action Agency, Inc.
and Affiliates

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year Ended September 30, 2018

Section Il - Financial Statement Findings
Finding 2018-001

Finding - Internal Controls in Weatherization Department

Condition: Certain costs, in the amount of $321.283, were charged to the weatherization and low income home
energy assistance (LIHEAP) programs during 2016, 2017 and 2018 for materials from one vendor that were
actually never received.

Criteria: Internal controls should be in place that provide reasonabie assurance that invoices paid and charged to
any program are for goods and services that have been received.

Cause: Weatherization funding is approximately 4% of NMCA’s overall budget. Due to the small department size
of the weatherization program, one individual in the weatherization department had the ability to request
accounting to create a new vendor. approve invoices, document the receipt of goods and complete reporting in the
state weatherization online system.

Effect: Because of the lack of internal controls surrounding purchasing, receiving and reporting in the
weatherization department, costs were charged to the following grants for costs that were never incurred:

Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year
2016 2017 2018
Weatherization 3 7,390 $ 155,756 L 0
Weatherization 30,579 13,520 4,800
LIHEAP 15,521 0 0
LIHEAP 0 93.717 0
Total by fiscal vear § 53490 3 262,993 $ 4,800

The total costs charged to weatherization were $212,045 and the total costs charged to LIHEAP were $109.238.

When NMCAA discovered these costs, they reimbursed the programs in question by recording an expense to their
unrestricted funds and a contingent liability to the funding source. In addition, NMCAA notified the funding
source of a pending criminal investigation into the matter.

Recommendation: Procedures should be implemented to ensure that one individual cannot request vendor set-
up, purchase, receive goods and complete the reporting in the State weatherization system. In addition, we
recommend that NMCAA work with the appropriate funding sources to resolve the ultimate outcome of the
contingent liability.

View of responsible officials: Management agrees with the finding and has been working on corrective action
which is included in the Corrective Action Plan.

L]
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Northwest Michigan Community Action Agency, Inc.
and Affiliates

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year Ended September 30, 2018

Section lil - Federal and State Award Findings and Questioned Costs
None

Section IV - Summary Schedule of Prior Year Findings
None
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NMCAA Corrective Action Plan

Northwest Michigan Community Action Agency (NMCAA) agrees with the finding of material weakness
in the internal controls regarding the Weatherization program. NMCAA is financially sound and prepared
to repay the contingent liability resulting from the Weatherization internal control weaknesses if so
raquired.

This issue was discovered during a transition period within the weatherization program when the former
weatherization manager left the Agency in July of 2018. A report was then made to authorities that
initiated a formal investigation. Executive Leadership began reviewing policies and procedures within
the weatherization department and throughout the entire Agency so that any needed changes could be
implemented quickly. This internal investigation revealed the fraudulent vendor issue was limited to the
weatherization department and did not reach other programs within the Agency.

lnternal Controls- Financial

Prior practice of allowing invoice payment without attached documentation was identified early on as
one aspect of the internal contral weakness within the weatherization department and was quickly
remedied. As the nature of the weakness was investigated, the Agency determined the issue reached
further into the vendor processing and payment systems. Thus, a formal checklist of items that must be
completed before a new vendor can be established in the accounting software was developed by the
Controller. This process has been implemented Agency-wide and formalized as part of the NMCAA
Financial Policies and Procedures. The annual review and approval of changes to the financial Policies
and Procedures was completed during the May 2019 Board of Directors meeting,

Internal Controls- Weatherization Program

An internal controis document specific to the Weatherization depariment was drafted by the new
Weatherization Manager. The Weatherization department internal controls document focuses on
separation of duties put in place within the areas of purchasing and receiving, inventary of equipment
and supplies, external reporting, and general oversight of the department, The document was reviewed
in January 2019 by the Community Services Program Director, the Weatherization Manager, the
Executive Director, and the Controller. The final draft of the document was completed in June 2019 and

all processes outlined in the document to ensure separation of duties were fully implemented by that
date.

In addition to the changes outlined above, job descriptions are being reviewed by the Executive
Leadership team to ensure that adequate segregation of duties exist and that no individuals have
authority to execute more than one related function within their respective roles, The Executive
Leadership team will ensure that this process is completed and any changes that need to made

northwest michigan community action agency

www.nmcaa.net a community action partnership
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implemented by June 30, 2019. By this date, all corrective actions outlined in this plan will be fully
implemented.

Person(s) Responsible:

Kerry Baughman, Executive Director
Narthwest Michigan Community Action Agency

Timing for Implementation: June 30, 2019
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